
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

AUGUST 10,2015,7:00 P.M. 

I. Request for funding by Dr. Richard Craig of the Jefferson-Blount-S!. Clair Mental Health 
Authority 

2. Proclamation declaring the month of September 2015 as Ovarian and Gynecologic Cancer 
Awareness Month. 

3. Approval of the minutes of the July 27, 2015 regular meeting of the City Council. 

4. Consideration: Resolution appointing Susan Elliott to The Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to serve 
without compensation through September 30, 2019. 

5. Consideration: Resolution declaring certain property either abandoned/unclaimed or surplus and 
authorizing its destruction and/or sale at public Internet auction. 

6. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for the LED Lighting Project and authorizing the 
execution of a contract for same. 

7. Consideration: Ordinance authorizing the placement of one (I) stop sign on Brookwood Road at 
its intersection with Crosshill Road and provide for punishment for violations thereof. 

8. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is August 24, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in 
the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

9. Comments from residents. 

10. Adjourn. 



JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
940 Montclair Road Suite 200 Birmingham. Alabama 35213 www.jbsmha.com 

Telephone: (205) 595-4555 Voice Mall: (205) 380-6460 Fax: (205) 592-3539 TOO: 1-800-545-1833 ext. 516 

Executive Committee of the Board 

Cathy Irvin 
President 

Lamar Kelly 
Secrelary 

Scotty Colson 
Member-AI-Large 

June 24, 2015 

Mr. Steven Boone, City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
POBox 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Mr. Boone: 

Margie Sanford 
Ftrst Vice-President 

J. Marvin Thornton 
Tleasurer 

Marianne Sharbel 
Member-AI-Large 

Lois Scott 
Second Vice-President 

Donna Burgess 
Assl. Secretary I Treasurer 

Cindy Smith 
Member-At-Large 

Please find enclosed our budget request for fiscal year 2016 outlining the funding needs 
of the agencies and programs for whom the Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health 
Authority is requesting local funding. Please distribute this information to Mayor Oden 
and the Mountain Brook City Council members for their review and consideration. 

We are looking forward to presenting our budget request to the Mountain Brook City 
Council members at an upcoming council meeting. Please contact Sophia Holloway or 
myself at 595-4555 if you will need any additional information prior to the meeting. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you for your assistance. 

Sincerely, 

~~ ~~~I~'r/~ssociate Director 

cc: Marianne Sharbel, Mountain Brook appointee to JBS board 
Jansen Voss, Mountain Brook appOintee to JBS board 
Bradley Cain, Mountain Brook appointee to JBS board 

Enclosure 

Board of Directors composed of three appointees each from: 
Bessemer - Birmingham - Btount County - Fairfield - Gardendale - Homewood - Hueytown 

Jefferson County - Leeds - Mountain Brook - Oneonta - Pell City - SI. Clair County - Tarrant - Vestavia Hills 



JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
940 Montclair Road Suite 200 Birmingham. Alabama 35213 www.jbsmha.com 

Telephone: (205) 595-4555 Voice Mall: (205) 380-6460 Fax: (205) 592-3539 roO: 1-800-545-1833 ext. 516 

Cathy Irvin 
President 

Lamar Kelly 
Secretary 

Scotty Colson 
Member-AI-Large 

June 24,2015 

Executive Committee of the Board 

Margie Sanford 
First Vice-President 

J. Marvin Thornton 
Treasurer 

Marianne Sharbel 
Membe,·AI-large 

The Honorable Mayor, Lawrence T. Oden 
City of Mountain Brook 
POBox 13009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Honorable Mayor Oden: 

Lois Scott 
Second Vice-President 

Donna Burgess 
Asst. Secretary I Treasurer 

Cindy Smith 
Member-AI-Large 

Enclosed please find our budget request for Fiscal Year 2016, outlining the funding needs of the 
agencies and programs for whom the Jefferson-Blount-SI. Clair Mental Health Authority is 
requesting local funding. Please note that the total amount of local support needed from all of the 
region's local governments is $947,361. The appropriation desired from the City of Mountain Brook 
is $2,100. 

Your contributions in the past have made a tremendous difference in the lives of the clients we 
serve. In combination with state, federal, and other local allocations, your funds have provided the 
following to 12 Mountain Brook residents in the past year: 

Medications and outpatient therapy for citizens with mental illness, 

A place to live and receive treatment for community members with mental illness, 

In-home therapy to prevent at-risk youth from being removed from their homes. 

Local funds are one of the most important resources to our system of care because they provide 
flexibility in their use. This flexibility allows our system to fill gaps in funding sometimes left as a 
result of designated state and federal funding of services. These funds also provide matching 
funds so that we can draw down federal funds. Without the support of the City of Mountain Brook, 
our system would not be able to provide many of the services so crucial to the mental health needs 
of our community. 

For the upcoming fiscal year, we are asking the City of Mountain Brook to consider appropriating 
our agency $2,100. This amount is equal to a level funding request for fiscal year 2016. 

Board of Directors composed of three appointees each from: 
Bessemer - Birmingham - Blounl Counly - Fairfield - Gardendale - Homewood - Hueytown 

Jefferson County - Leeds - Mounlain Brook - Oneonla - Pell City - SI. Clair County - Tarrant - Vestavia Hills 



This agency has a long tradition of serving persons with the most serious mental illnesses who 
have little or no health care funding, and who depend upon us for their mental health care. We 
serve a high percentage of persons below the poverty level, a high percentage of minorities, and 
thousands of people who cannot access services any other way. Our system served over 12,000 
of these clients last fiscal year. 

Enclosed is a description of all the services provided for by local funds. You can see that none of 
these services are "luxury" items, but are services that recipients vitally need to return to and 
remain as functioning members of our community. 

On behalf of the clients we serve, we would like to thank you for your careful consideration of this 
request and for your past and continued support of our clients and programs. 

L~er:y,_ ~ 
a~ -'-/ 

James A. Crego 
Controller/Associate Director 

Enc: Description of Local Services 
History of Clients Served and Funding 



JEFFERSON·BLOUNT ·ST. CLAIR 
MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Description of Local Services and Projected Funding Levels 

EASTSIDE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER INPATIENT SERVICES· $120,000: This 
funding is to assist Eastside Mental Health Center in providing for inpatient psychiatric 
treatment for persons in crisis and who are uninsured. 

WESTERN MENTAL HEALTH CENTER INPATIENT SERVICES AND GENERAL 
OPERATIONS· $155,556: This funding is to assist Westem Mental Health Center in 
providing for inpatient psychiatric treatment for persons in crisis and who are uninsured, 
and in providing outpatient services to maintain persons with mental illness in the 
community. 

UAB COMMUNITY PSYCHIATRY PROGRAM· $120,000: This funding is to assist UAB 
Mental Health Center in providing for inpatient psychiatric treatment for persons in crisis 
and who are uninsured. 

PROGRAMS OPERATED BY THE JEFFERSON·BlOUNT·ST. CLAIR MENTAL 
HEALTH AUTHORITY - $551,805: This funding provides for the following services: 

Children Services Programs including the F.I.N.D. Project (Family Integrity Network 
Demonstration Project): The F.I.N.D. program provides in-home and case management 
services for children at risk of being removed from their homes, and their families, to 
preserve the integrity of the family unit. Services also include a crisis intervention 
response team which provides in-home intervention and assessment to children identified 
as multiple needs children to prevent removal of the children from their homes. 

Family Court Liaison: This program provides direct liaison services to 
emotionallylbehaviorally disturbed children and their families involved with the Family 
Courts in Jefferson and St. Clair Counties. These employees are responsible for clinical 
assessment of client needs and advocating for appropriate, least restrictive altematives. 
These employees work directly with the Family Court Judges, probation officers, and staff 
of the court in accessing and implementing mental health services. 

Children Overcoming Problems Everyday (COPE): Child Mental Health Initiative 
formerly funded via a SAMHSA federal grant, this program has been sustained through 
the financial support of local DHR, Family Court and City and County school systems to 
enhance and expand child and adolescent mental health services within Jefferson County. 
This program has allowed us to develop new services, improve access to existing 
services, and improve our ability to identify children in need of our services. 



PAGE 2 OF 5 

Urgent Care Clinic: Opened in December 2013, the clinic offers a first of its kind service 
in the state of Alabama: a walk-in clinic for those in need of immediate psychiatric care. 
One of the goals of the clinic is to reduce crowding of local hospital emergency rooms. The 
emergency room is a much higher level of care than is needed by many psychiatric 
patients currently frequenting the ER. The immediate access available at the Urgent Care 
Clinic also will provide a bridge to those in the community waiting for an appointment at a 
local mental health center, but in need of services in advance of the appointment 
availability. Staffing includes a Psychiatrist, Master's level therapist, RN, LPN, Peer 
Navigators and a Case Manager. 

Mental Illness Residential Housing, Supported Housing, Aparbnents, and Clinical 
Services: This program provides community based housing and associated therapeutic 
services for 322 persons with mental illness, who would otherwise be patients at state 
psychiatric hospitals. 

Mental Illness Day Treatment: This program provides intensive habilitation training in 
economic self-sufficiency, self-care, self-direction, receptive/expressive language, leaming 
and capacity for independent living. The focus of training is to enable the individual to 
reach his or her maximum potential which would allow movement to the most independent 
setting possible. Local funds provide match for accessing federal reimbursement. 

Mental Illness Foster Homes and Nursing Homes: This program provides monitoring 
and supervision of persons placed in the 49 foster home beds and 70 nursing home beds 
available for the mentally ill/intellectually disabled in our three county region. Mental health 
services are also provided to these clients, as needed, through this program. 

Communitv Outreach Services Case Management: This program provides assistance 
for clients to obtain housing, entitlements, and health care services, to enable them to live 
successfully in the community. 

Probate Court Services: This program provides for a link between the Jefferson County 
and Bessemer Cut-Off Probate Courts and the community mental health system, and to 
assist families (petitioners) seeking commitment to state hospitals. 

Supported Living: This program provides two Supported Living case managers who 
work with clients returning to independent living after being hospitalized at Bryce Hospital 
and then completing one of the Authority's residential programs. These clients receive 
case management support needed to enable them to maintain their independence in the 
community. 



PAGE 30F5 

Jefferson County Health Department Team: The focus of the Health Department Team 
is to target consumers residing in Boarding Homes in an attempt to increase their quality of 
care. The team will work in concert with the Health Department Inspection Team to strive 
to decrease the number of non-permitted Boarding Homes, while increasing Boarding 
Home resources for the homeless population. 

Bryce Hospital Liaison: This program provides a link between Bryce Hospital and other 
Department of Mental Health facilities and the community mental health programs of our 
region. 

Bryce Extended Care Outplacement (POP): This person-centered outplacement 
program provides community based housing for individuals directly discharged from state 
psychiatric hospitals. In addition to other residential facilities, operations in Blount County 
include a 3D-bed (MOM) supportive apartment complex and an around the clock awake 
staff. These individuals' unique behavioral needs present a challenge for traditional 
community settings and they set goals to enhance their quality of community living. 

Homeless Services: This program provides case management services for homeless 
individuals with mental illness, to assist them in accessing housing, entitlements, and 
health care services. Local Funds provide match for accessing federal grant 
reimbursement. 

Jefferson County SherifFs Department CSO: This program provides mental health 
outreach and liaison services to the sheriffs department. Sheriffs deputies have access 
to a CSO 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

Program of Assertive Community Treatment: A team approach to care, targeting hard 
to reach individuals diagnosed with severe and persistent mental illness. Integrates 
mental health treatment, substance abuse treatment, vocational rehabilitation, case 
management, assistance with daily living skills and social support within a multi
disciplinary team. Emergency response is also provided by this 12 person team and a 
team member is available 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. 

Outpatient Commitment Team: This program works with individuals who are 
undergoing evaluation for involuntary commitment or have been outpatient committed to a 
deSignated mental health facility by Jefferson County Probate Court. The program 
purpose is to provide less restrictive treatment options for individuals by offering court 
screening, in-home intervention and physician assessment and treatment services. 

Office of Deaf Services: Provides clinical services, case management and residential 
services to mentally ill consumers with hearing loss. Interpreting services in mental health 
care settings are also provided out of this office. Staff also performs advocacy work to 
ensure that all persons with hearing loss receive access to culturally and linguistically 
appropriate services in mental health. 



PAGE40F5 

Properties Management: This category provides funds for maintenance of buildings and 
equipment associated with the Authority central office, Eastside Mental Health Center, the 
Intellectual disabilities Skills Center, the 1920 Club, mental illness residential beds, and 
intellectual disabilities residential beds. 

Authority Administration: This category provides for a variety of services that are not 
covered through state contracts and other funding sources, such as client information 
system, client trust accounting, contract management, and other administrative services. 



· . 

Jefferson-Blount-Sl Clair Mental Health Authority 
Projected Utilization of Local Funds 

DESCRIPTION 

Sub-Contracted Programs: 
Eastside Mental Health Center 
Westem Mental Health Center 
UAB Mental Health Center 

for Fiscal Year 2016 

PAGE50F5 

AMOUNT 

$120,000 
$155,556 
$120,000 

Authority Operated Programs: $551,805 
Children'S Programs 
Family Court Liaison 
Children Overcoming Everyday Problems (COPE) 
Urgent Care Clinic 
Mental Illness Residential 
Mental Illness Apartments 
Mental Illness Day Treatment 
Mental Illness Foster Homes and Nursing Homes 
Community Outreach Services Including Case ManagementlRN Services 
Probate Court Services 
Supported Living 
Jefferson County Health Department Team 
Bryce Hospital Liaison 
Bryce Extended Care Outplacement Program (POP) 
Homeless Services 
Jefferson County Sheriff's Department Community Support Officers 
Program of Assertive Community Treatment 
Outpatient Commitment Team 
Office of Deaf Services 
Properties Management 
Administration 

TOTAL NEEDED FROM LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

TOTAL DESIRED APPROPRIATION FROM 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

$947,361 

$ 2,100 



"'t:t"t"~K;;UN-t:H_(JUNT-ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
HISTORY OF CLIENTS SERVED AND FUNDING (LAST 10 YEARS) 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

DESIRED FISCAL. YEAR 2016 APPROPRIATION 
CURRENT YEAR - FISCAL YEAR 2015 

FISCAL YEAR 2014 
FISCAL YEAR 2013 
FISCAL YEAR 2012 
FISCAL YEAR 2011 
FISCAL YEAR 2010 
FISCAL YEAR 2009 
FISCAL YEAR 2008 
FISCAL YEAR 2007 
FISCAL YEAR 2006 

MOUNTAIN BROOK 

MOUNTAIN BROOK RESIDENTS 
APPROPRIATION SERVED 

$ 2,100 
2,100 

2,100 
2,100 
2,000 
2,000 
2,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,400 
1,300 

12 
23 
38 
77 
71 
81 

128 
114 
148 

JEFFERSON-BLOUNT-ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH PROVIDER NETWORK 
UNDUPLICATED COUNT OF CLIENTS SERVED 
FISCAL YEAR 2014 - CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

UAB MENTAL HEALTH CENTER 
EASTSIDE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER 
WESTERN MENTAL HEALTH CENTER 
JBS 10 GROUP HOMES 
JBS 10 DAY TRAINING PROGRAM 
JBS MI RESIDENTIAL. PROGRAM 
JBS BRYCE LIAISON 
JBS BRYCE EXTENDED CARE OUTPLACEMENT (POP) 
JBS MH PROBATE COURT SERVICES 
JBS MH COMMUNITY OUTREACH SERVICES 
JBS SUPPORTIVE LIVING 
JBS HOMELESS SERVICES PROJECT 
JBS IN-PATIENT HOSPITAL LIAISON 
JBS OUTPATIENT COMMITMENT TEAM 
JBS JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TEAM 
JBS JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICERS 
JBS CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
JBS PROACT TEAM 
JBS DEAF SERVICES 
JBS CRISIS CENTER CASE MANAGER 
1920 CLUB 

TOTAL CLIENTS SERVED 

MOUNTAIN BROOK 

1 
8 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
3 
o 
o 
o 
o 

12 



PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, ovarian and gynecologic cancers are among the leading cancer killers of women in the 
United States, and more than 98,000 women will be diagnosed, and more than 30,000 women will die from 
these diseases this year; and 

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being of women in our city and state are enhanced by 
increased awareness about ovarian and gynecologic cancers and their symptoms and treatments; and 

WHEREAS, it is critical for women, physicians and all healthcare providers to recognize the risk 
factors and symptoms of ovarian and gynecologic cancers and to remember the importance of early detection 
in preventing and treating these diseases; and 

WHEREAS, continued progress in the battle against ovarian and gynecologic cancers requires 
increased awareness and education, and all educators, service providers, researchers and advocacy groups are 
urged to work together to inform more women about ovarian and gynecologic cancers and to educate women 
in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and the State of Alabama about screening services; and 

WHEREAS, it is also crucial that all women in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and the State 
of Alabama take an active role in learning the symptoms and risk factors associated with ovarian and 
gynecologic cancers, developing healthy habits, and undergoing regular medical examinations so that any 
occurrence of these diseases may be detected in their early and treatable stages; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. do 

hereby proclaim September 20 IS, as 

OVARIAN AND GYNECOLOGIC CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

throughout the City and encourage all residents of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama to work together to 
raise awareness of ovarian and gynecologic cancers and do commend this observance to all our residents. 

Given under my hand and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. on 
this 10th day of August, in the year of our Lord, 2015, and of the 
Independence of the United States of America. 239th. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 



Minute Book 87 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

JULY 27, 2015 

325 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (AI06) of City Hall at 6:15 p.m. on Monday, the 27th day of July, 2015. The Council President Pro 
Tempore called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Boone. 

Present: 

Absent: 

William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 

1. AGENDA 

I. Proposed drainage study for Overbrook Road area in and around Canterbury Methodist Church 
- Walter Schoel ofSchoel Engineering (Appendix I). 

It was the consensus of the Council members present that the study, which would only measure 
the estimated frequency and severity of flooding, would be of little benefit to the City. Mr. 
Schoel, whose firm is under contract with the City for professional services, was asked to walk 
the creek to identify any potential conditions that could be impeding water flow and report his 
findings to the City Manager. 

2. First amendment to the lease with American Tower Corporation for the cell tower located at the 
high school athletic complex. (Resolution No. 20 I 5- I 09 was added to the formal meeting 
agenda.) 

3. Review of the formal [7 p.m.] meeting agenda. 

2. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further issues for discussion, Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard adjourned the 
pre-meeting. 

City Clerk 

J:\Minul" & AgendnslCouncill2015120150727 Minules.doc July 27, 2015 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

JULY 27, 2015 

327 

The City Council ofthe City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 27th day of July, 2015. The Council President Pro Tempore 
called the meetings to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: 

Absent: 

William S. Pritchard, III, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President Pro Tempore stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was 
open for the transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF CAREY HOLLINGSWORTH (EXHIBIT 1) 

Mayor Oden read aloud and presented Resolution No. 2015-102 to Mr. Hollingsworth. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard announced that the following matters will be considered at 
one time on the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the July 13,2015 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2015-102 

2015-103 

2015-104 

2015-105 

2015-106 

2015-107 

Expression gratitude to Carey Hollingsworth for his service on 
the Parks and Recreation Board 

Appoint Jorja White to The Jefferson County Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities Authority 

Appoint Helen McTyeire Drennen to the Mountain Brook Park 
and Recreation Board, to serve without compensation, with the 
term of office to end July 27, 2020 

Authorize the City Clerk on behalf of the Mountain Brook 
municipal court to issue notice to Judicial Correction Services, 
Inc. (JCS) of the City's intent to cancel its contract (Resolution 
No. 2003-164) 

Declare certain equipment and furniture surplus and authorizing 
its sale by way of public Internet auction 

Recommend to the ABC Board the issuance of a license to 
Kessler Collection Management, LLC, doing business as the 
Grand Bohemian Hotel Mountain Brook located in Mountain 
Brook Village, Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

J;\Minutes & Agcndns\Council\20IS\201 50727 Minutes_doc 

Exhibit I 

Exhibit 2, 
Appendix I 

Exhibit 3, 
Appendix 2 

Exhibit 4, 
Appendix 3 

Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 6, 
Appendix 4 

July 27.2015 



328 

2015-108 

2015-109 

Minute Book 87 

Authorize the execution of an encroachment agreement between 
the City and W. Banks Petrey and Bragan D. Petrey of 12 
Norman Drive, Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Authorize the execution of the First Amendment to the Tower 
Site Sublease Agreement between the City and American 
Tower Asset Sub, LLC, with respect to the wireless 
communication tower located at Liberty Parkway (Athletic 
Complex behind gymnastics building) 

Exhibit 7, 
Appendix 5 

Exhibit 8, 
Appendix 6 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Shelton. The minutes and resolutions 
were then considered by the City Council. Council member Womack seconded the motion to adopt the 
foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: William S. Pritchard, lll, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard thereupon declared that said minutes and Resolution Nos. 
2015·102 through 2015·109 are adopted by a vote of 4-0. 

3. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT OF TWO (2) STOP 
SIGNS ON BROOKWOOD ROAD AT ITS INTERSECTION WITH CROSSHILL ROAD 
AND PROVIDE FOR PUNISHMENT FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF (EXHIBIT 9, 
APPENDIX 7) 

The proposed ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard who 
then invited Mr. Richard Caudle with Skipper Consulting, Inc. forward to describe the proposal (Exhibit 9, 
Appendix 7). Upon conclusion of Mr. Caudle' s comments and explanation, Mr. Pritchard invited comments 
from proponents of the proposed stop signs. There being no one to speak in favor, comments were invited 
from those who opposed the proposal. 

Ms. Lorelle Baddley of3569 Brookwood Road: 
If implemented, she believes her driveway will effectively become a 4.way stop for about twenty 
minutes in the morning 
Presently, the only motorists she must make eye contact with before proceeding are those coming 
down Crosshill Road to Brookwood Road 
Perceives this proposal will could make the intersection less safe 
Does not understand the necessity of this proposal considering the limited time spans in the 
morning and evening when cars que to make their maneuvers 
Can recall only one or two accidents at this intersection in the 14 years she has resided here 

Mr. Pritchard explained that the City obtained an APPLE Grant (Resolution No. 2014-099) to study 
various intersections throughout the City. The City Council solicited input from the community in order to 
identify the intersections to be studied through this grant. This intersection was selected for study based on 
comments and feedback from the community. 

Mr. John Baddley of 3569 Brookwood Road: 
Complained that the high school kids frequently do not stop for the existing stop signs and is 
concerned that these new signs will be no different 
Suggested that law enforcement efforts be increased at this intersection 

J:lMinu.cs & AgcndnsICouncil\20tS\201S0727 Minu.cs.doc July 27. 2015 



Minute Book 87 

Mr. Sean Hannon of3613 Brookwood Road: 
The congestion at this intersection occurs only for a short time in the morning and evening 
The area residents are very familiar with the flow and congestion 

329 

The distance between the two stop signs on Brookwood Road will be very short (165 feet from 
center to center per Mr. Caudle) and the section of road between the two stop signs is a straight 
shot 
Would prefer speed bumps to stop signs 

Mr. Caudle: 
The only sight distance issue observed is for those motorists turning left from Brookwood Road 
onto Crosshill Road toward the high school 
If the Council wishes to omit the proposed stop sign on Brookwood Road southbound, then he 
recommends that he take another look to determine the exact nature ofthe sight distance issues 

There being no further comments or discussion, Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard called for a 
motion regarding the proposed ordinance. There being none, Mr. Pritchard announced that in deference to the 
concerns raised and comments made, the matter will be continued pending further study and analysis by Mr. 
Caudle. It is expected that the matter may be considered by the City Council again on August 10, 20 I 5 at 7 
p.m. 

4. OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. James Lott, representing Canterbury United Methodist, stated that he was in attendance to hear 
the discussion regarding the proposed drainage study for Overbrook Road area in and around Canterbury 
Methodist Church [that was discussed at the 6:15 p.m. pre-meeting]. Council President Pro-Tempore Pritchard 
explained that this mailer was discussed previously and updated Mr. Lott about that earlier discussion. 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook 
City Council will be held on Monday, August 10,2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall 
located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) 
for more information. 

City Clerk 

ExumITl 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-102 

WHEREAS, Carey Hollingsworth served with dedicated distinction on the Mountain Brook Parks 
and Recreation Board from October 22, 2004 through July 14, 2015 and has served as Chairman since March, 
2006; and 

WHEREAS, Carey Hollingsworth's background, leadership and knowledge have proven to be 
invaluable by providing input and guidance to the Mountain Brook Parks and Recreation Department for 
future planning for numerous projects, including: construction of a new Parks and Recreation building; 
renovation of a portion of the playground at Overton Park to create Cam's Comer; installation of water 
fountains at Mountain Brook Elementary playing field and Jemison Park and future fountains at Overton Park 
and Jemison Nature Trail; public restrooms at Overton Park and Brookwood Forest Elementary and future 
restrooms at Crestline Elementary and Mountain Brook Elementary; and upgrading the trash receptacles and 
park signs throughout the parks; and 

J.lMinu,cs &: Agendas1Cound1UOISUOIS0727 Minu'os.doc July 27, 2015 



RESOLUTION NO. 201S-111 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Susan 
Elliott is hereby appointed to The Emmet O' Neal Library Board, to serve without compensation, her term 
to end September 30,2019. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of August, 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of August, 2015. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICA nON 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on August 10,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Susan Elliott Library Board Appointment 2015-111 



Education 

Experience 

Intcrcsts 

Susan Sipple Elliott 

3895 Glencoe Drive 

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

205.870.3311 

205.602.2835 

Mary Baldwin College 1985-1989 

Staunton, VA BA English 

Virginia Program at. Oxford, Summer 1987 

May term shldy of Italian Renaissance Art, Italy 1988 

University of Alabanm at. Birminghanl MA Art History Dec 1993 

Curatorial Assistant-Curator of Paintings, Sculphlre and Works on Paper, 

1300 to the present. Birminghanl Muselllll of Art. 199,1-1999 

Editor at L'U'ge, Portico Magazine 

Contributing Editor, Flower Magazine 2012- present 

Cochainvoman Antiques at the Gardens 2010 

Helped raisc $300,000 for Birmingllanl Bot:Ulical Gardcns 

Fricnds of thc Enilllct O'Ncal Libl'm'Y, ycm' rmUld book sale \'ollUlteCI', 

2010-prcscnl. 

Prcsidcnl Fricnds of the EnllllCl O'Ncal Library 2013-2014 

J lUlior vVardcn, Scnior Wardcn, Cathcdral Church of thc Ad"cnt 

2013.,J:umrm'Y 2015 

Rcading, Horscback riding, Gardcning, vValking, Travel 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-112 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which 
are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: It is hereby established and declared that the following property: I) items I through 13 below 
represents unclaimed or abandoned property and 2) items 14 through 20 below owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes and are hereby declared 
surplus property: 

Giant Roam3, sin: C82JJ 832, Auction 
Color black 

2 201400026602 Recovered I-skateboard, Adam longboard, sin: Auction 
3 71073 VDOCS I-table saw, Craftsman, sin: unknown Auction 
4 71073 VDOCS I-miter saw, Delta Shopmaster, sin: Auction 
5 71073 VDOCS I-staple gun, Porter Cable, sin: Auction 
6 201500007478 Recovered Property 6-plastic A TV front body pieces, camo Auction 
7 201400011035 Recovered Property I-soft sided cooler, I-keychain with key Destroy 
8 201400008679 Recovered Property Jail inmate property not picked Destroy 
9 201400002371 Recovered Property I-backpack, Northface, containing Destroy 
10 201400000235 Criminal Mischief 3-paint cans, I-jacket Destroy 
II 201300020725 Recovered Property I-purse and contents Destroy 

12 201200022494 Theft of Property Misc. clothes (7-items) Destroy 
13 201300025014 Recovered Property I-"Fossil" brand bag containing misc Destroy 
14 City Property I-DVD Recorder, Toshiba DR430, sin: Auction 
15 City Property I-DVD Recorder, Toshiba DR430, sin: Auction 
16 City Property I-server, unknown brand, (used as Auction 
17 City Property I-battery backup device, APC Smart- Auction 
18 City Property I-CCTV camera, Toshiba IK-65WDA, Auction 
19 City Property I-cordless power drill, Ryobi HP962, Auction 
20 City Property I-Infrared traffic control emitter, Auction 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to sell said property by way of public Internet 
auction to the highest bidder and to otherwise dispose of such property that does not sell at said public 
auction. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of August, 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of August, 2015. 

Mayor 

2015-112 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on August 10, 2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-113 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby awards the LED Lighting Project bid to Innovis Lighting, L.L.C. having 
submitted the best qualified bid. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a professional services contract 
agreement between the City and Innovis Lighting, L.L.C. subject to review and approval by the 
City Attorney. 
 
ADOPTED: This 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Council President 
 
APPROVED:   This 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
  

CERTIFICATION 
 
 I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on August 10, 2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LED Lighting Project Bid Award (Innovis Lighting, L.L.C.)            2015-113 



81612015 CI1y of Mountain Brook Mall - Village Ughllng 

Karen Fowler <fowlerk@mtnbrook.org> 

Village Lighting 
1 message 

Ronald Vaughn <vaughnr@mtnbrook.org> Thu, Aug 6, 2015 at 8:22 AM 
To: Karen Fowler <fowlerk@mtnbrook.org> 
Cc: Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org>, Sam Gaston <gastons@mtnbrook.org> 

Karen, 

Please find attached the two bid packages we received for the LED Village Lighting project. We received bids 
from Innovis Lighting,L.L.C. ($195.80) and Mayer Electric Supply ($468.75). 

It is my recommendation that we award the bid to Innovis Lighting for $195.80 per unit. 

Thanks 

Ronnie Vaughn 
Public Works Director 
City of Mountain Brook AL 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham, Alabama 35243 
205.802.3865 Office 
205.967.2631 Fax 
vaughnr@mtnbrook.org 

2 attachments 

~ Village Lighting Innovis.pdf 
5907K 

~ Village Lighting Mayer.pdf 
2099K 

hIIps1Imall.google.com/mailiuJOI?Li=2&lk=4e66c531eO&vlew=pI&search=lnbox&1h=14f032dOccee6aa7&slml=14f032dOccee6aa7 1/1 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
City of Mountain Brook 

- ~ - . 

filMlIl1:£iOY~~\5.:::\:' , ,.";: l!L _ 1P.1 'Q:~ ~ rU= . . '.' _ _ ' 
.:;)',/~ I·/L~(,; ~~Cl:"",~,,~i IS f.::t c.:: .-l l '~; I ·li · ' '. _, ~ ;I., 

, . . 

April 22, 2015 

56 Vine Street, Suite 100 
Birmlngham,AL 35213 

(205) 396-3979 
www.innovlsllghtlng.com 

lob Name: City of Mountain Brook LED retrofit 
Project Number: MI 001·2015 
Bid #: 42215.03 
Bid Date: 4/22/2015 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

Thank you for the opportunity to bid on this project for the City of Mountain Brook. We are 
able to provide two (2) options for your consideration. Both come with a full ten year 
manufacturer's warranty. Both will require a test fitting of the LED into the existing acorn head to 
ensure fitment. 

Option 1: Cree OPT Series (OPT A SB FR A 30K-UL UF) is a 3000K, 175W 
Mercury Vapor or 70W MH or HPS equivalent, rated and guaranteed for ten (10) years. Lead 
time on this module is approximately six (6) weeks. It is specifically designed to preserve 
the historic look of the Villages' streetscapes. Lead time is six (6) weeks once order is 
placed. The price per unit is $147.40 delivered. I have attached the specification sheet to 
this proposal for your review. 

Option 2: DECO RET -1 series (RETl-LED40S0UNV) is available in 2700K, 
175W Mercury Vapor /70W Metal Halide/High Pressure Sodium equivalent, and ir also 
rated for ten (10) years with a full manufacturer's warranty. Lead time is six (6) weeks 
once order is placed. The price per unit is $195.80 delivered. I have requested an updated 
specification sheet and will provide it to you as soon as possible. 

Please feel free to contact me at (205) 401-6739 if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

, ........ """ 
. Randall Pitts, Ir. 

Innovis Lighting, L.L.C. 



lighting 
DECO digital™ 350143 

lighting systems Acorn King Luminaire LED Kit 

?glitlllg 
facts .-.-....... 

Retrofit Kit 

DECO 
r etrofit"" 

Job Information 

Type: 

Catalog /I: 

Project: 

Comments: 

Prepared by: 

Features and Benefits 
LED's are under driven. These chips are 1m 80 qualified at 1000ma, 
by operating al almost half the allowed currenl level lowers inlernal 

I operating junction temp. And extends life beyond 170 at SOk hours, 
! . High led count and low drive current provides increased efficacy 

(Uw) and reduced operating temperature, which generates a more 
robust, balanced and sustainable light engine. 
Type S round; other distributions available. 
Allows for immediate thermal transfer and dissipation, away from the 
LED's. Marine grade 4 anodizing provides a corrosion proof 
treatment to all exposed aluminum. 
Soldered power wires provides a robust electrical connection 
eliminating future corrosion and contact faiture. 
Smgle polycarbonate lens with 18 culminators provide high light 
transmission with a contamination free assembly, seal is performed 
by a 100% high temp tubular silicone gasket. 
A1tows for easy sel'/ice and conversions. 
Best technique used for sustainable light engine control. 
Provides true power savings and tine surge management. 
Best available 
Auto sensing. 
Better thermal characteristics. 
Provides fluid control during ramp up and ramp down; 10-100% lumen 

n 
Q 

-
~ 

output with linear wattage consumption. ---
Qualified safety certified. 

-

ORDERING INFORMATION: 

Example: (350143-40-27-UNV ) -=--'---,---l -aiii.- I I 

Acoo1 KongllJminaie LED Kit :7 - 2700k' J.. 
4Q · 40Wl4400 

-

UNV • 12lJ.277V 

~ 

DEC 0 L I G H TIN G 11,)2013 Deco Lighting' "The Brand Name for Quality" • A division of Deco Enterprises, Inc. 



56 Church st. 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 

OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER) 

BID COVER SHEET 
Bid Request Posted this Date: 0410812015 Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: 0412212015 @ 2:00 p.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at the date and 
time specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited to, Ala. Code 
(1975) §§41· I 6-50 et seq. and 31-13· 1 et seq., and provide documentation of enrollment in the E-Verify 
program pursuant to Ala. Code §31-13-9. 

All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet should be 
completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be clearly 
marked "SEALED BID" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted 
and the date of bid opening. 

The City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be provided with the 
request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible bidder, in 
which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities. 

Sam S. Gaston, city Manager and purchasing Agent 

Specifications for Project No. MI 001-2015: Village Lighting Project throughout the City of 
Mountain Brook- Public Works Department. 

BIDDER !,J"'DVI!> l-t(;fl'TWC; L..L-.c.. 
I 

TELEPHON(l=c...-v .=.D.I-___ _ 

ADDRESS S"ir V,. £ STi2C<rr' 

EMAIL ~A .. b .. lLC5!t ..... V.~I-II!.II.Tj..JG. {.O 1-1 

STATE AL-

BID AMOUNT (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS) $/9f,,j'(? 
• 

Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 

Tbis bid must be sign below b bidde 'nci al/o£ficer/agent and notarized: 

Auth. Signature:~~~~~~~L-~ ______ __ 
Sworn to and subscribed before me on this . -' '';-
2.2. day of ~'-- ,)O/.L _. 

Name: :::::r K ... ,",,, ..... 
Title: M"',.Jllo,IJc, k(eM Be /L 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 ext. 3865 

Notary Public 
My Commissio 
Ex ires: 

'. 

7 



SPECIFICATIONS FOR: PROJECT NO. MI 001-2015: Village Lighting Project 
throughout the City of Mountain Brook, Public Works Department. 

The city of Mountain Brook, Alabama will be accepting bids for approximately105 LED 
retrofit light fixtures for existing pole top acorn fixtures. The fixtures shall be 

Amerlux RF AVI-U-SY-27L 

Or equal. 

Specifications: 

1 8-12" telescoping field adjustment 
2 IP66 rated sealed LED chamber and optics 
3 Standard 10 KV surge protection in addition to over voltage or short circuit 

protection 
4 2700 Kelvin 
5 Color is in a four (4) McAdams Ellipse quadrant 
6 Standard 10 year/50,000 hour warranty 
7 Anodized cast aluminum heat sink 
8 Automatic AC incoming voltage sensing 120-277 volt 50/60 hertz 
9 Symmetric distributions. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

The successful bidder must obtain a city Mountain Brook business license. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

This bid shall be good for a period of 12 months from the time a purchase order is issued. The City 
reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities without a change In bid price. Bidder should 
provide a unit cost as its bid amount. Bidder shall also provide any shipping or additional cost to City 
of providing the fixtures. The bid amount SHOULD NOT include installation cost as installation Is 
beyond the scope ofthe bid request. . 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 exL 3865 



To: COHTRACTORSANDGRANTEES 

FROM: 1ltE 0lY OF MOUNTAIN BROOIC 

ATTN: STEVEN BOONE 

NonCE 

P. o. 8Q1( 13OCI09, MOUNTAIN BROOIC. AlA8AMA35W.m009 

RE: H.8. 56-AI.ABAMA IMMIGRATlON LAW roMPUANC£ 

The 1U1J05<c1th1s Melrmndum Is ID aIert\'XIIDIho_1mmiI!ra<iOn llIw ~ __ 
_ 1M _ oIIe<tM:onJanua<y 1. 2012. Those ... __ hen!In and "'" bo "lIlImartzed as foIows: 

1. PROVIDE The Oty of Mountain Brook '''the cttn doaImentation supPCIrtlns yowcompl~nce with the 

immIIrotioll law bytfmoly submlttinl' l1OI>rIzedAJjldoylt of -... "",,,,,,., .. , CJxnpIJona by."""'" 
£ntft)'J£mp.toyrr~ to G PoIItICoI~ of the Srtlte Q{ AlobcmG and an E-Verify MemorIndum af 

Undfl'Standlna: 

3, PROYJOE W"O'A" Jubc.ontractots notice of theW'comptianceob'iplions and OBTAIN from each I oomrizedA/fltlavH. 
of AIftotrNl' ImmigrodDn ~ by Q S&tbc:otItracto. 

The requI,..,..., _. """""" by HI! 56 . ... ". amditlan , ... he award c10ny QIfltroct. _~ Of Inctnllve by 
the Stlte of A1.atNma. any pofitic:J1 subcflYisJon thereof. or any iClte-funded enUtv to. busineu entity or employer tNt 
employs one Dr more emplovees (worldna '" the SUite of Afabima].-' As iI Contractor' or a Gl'ilntet. if you believe thf!$e 
obI",,_ do lICIt.ppIy 10 YOU. please notify .... CIty _ely. 

ForyourCDl'lV'tNence., we hive IntIuded for your use a Ample AFFlMVlTOF ALABAMAIMMIGRATlON COMPlIANCE 
B'I • BUSINESS ENTIlY/EMI'I.O'I'ERIONTRACIOR 10 APOUTICA1. SUI!OMSION OF litE STATE OF Io1NlAMA. ...... CDIIIflIeu:. 
notJrtze. and mum a copy to The Oty of Mountain Brook_Ions with your.uached E-VEJUFY MEMOAAHOUM OF 
UNOOtSTAI«lING. See fUA. CXJOE t 31-13-9 (c). 

You a~ also required to obtain from voursubc:ontracrDrsa notarized AFfIDAVIT Of IMMIGRAllON CIlMPUANCE BY A 
SU8COHTKACTOR. A CiW1!fuI review rA the broad ddInkJon bekJw r:J tf,e tem -Ccnlnctof" In the Act wi! ~ vau In deciding to 
whom to proWSe notice. 

If you CI:If1tI'Xt with mote than OM kal p:IWtnI _ ..lt you wi! oriv need to have one aIfida\/it c:mpIeltd and nocartted, 

and then pnMde I CDPY to the ~BOUemmentai entities. You are req.ftd to maintain yotr SIbcoilbatton' ~ ~t 
VW' Dffices. ~ dcx:uments will be subj«! tD audit. You may pttMde a copy of tNs Memorandum with your noUftcatIon 
~ UJ your subaxltr.w:tors is an et:pIiwtion forlhis InindaCory requircm:m. 

FNtt. you will find a N01lCE OF AlABAMA tMMIGRAllON LAW COMPlIANCE REQIJIREMENTS TO All. CON'TRAOORS 
OF ntE atYOf MOUNTAIN 8AOOI(, IJNiAMA (-A1.AIWM IMMtGRAlKlN COMPUA.NCECDNlMClj foreJllll!altion bv 
contractors and to be retumed to the Oty of Mountain Brook.. To the extl!t'lt that Ihe~ is no formal writtm centrad: between , 
contnaur anetthe Oty 'e .. ~ wnere btAInes.l 1$ eonducted l7f purtNse orderl, this document ShIll seM!: IS your 1JiIt»ma 
__ Com"""", Conu>ct._,"-shoIlolsabo Indudedlndfutunl_ .oo_OIeCUIed_1he 
City rI Moootain Brook. 

AlA. CODU 31.13-9 (., ~ Ib'. sn hup·" .......... 1119 """,1 1I,(Fik-. IIT!II'oII'~!ion·AL- 4"'.lOII ' !il!i h lawk ftDWCDdIfied In AlA. COD[" 
Ji.u-. to l1-tDO IS MIl n I 12-6-9 Idle ""'n-
A CPC:rMIDr b ddIMd trvIdrr IrI the Ad U -A (IenOII,. ~. fit ~ enlIIy INt _m ItCO 1ft JC'ft"ItftlIO ptrfDrfa..., xr"'D: III' .at f1T 

ta prtMde I atrtM ~ n ~ lot V3Iu.iIbIf; ~ tNt; ~ stgI Inclde. M fd bII .... I'd Ia. .. ~ ca-ccraaor. 
Slba:wlnclDr,~ Q:II"IUKU:Ir, a:w1ftXl~ IlfUtCdINN&'l:l". orl ~or""" cntIry,e N.A aJO[ It ll-J.l.3 (3l 

ProjeCi Coordin •• or: Ronald Vaughn (20S) 802-2390 ext. 3865 



AFADAVIT DF AlABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE BY A 

BU51NESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR TO A POunCAl5U8DM5ION 
OF THE STATE OF AlABAMA 

(To be COITII)Irtftll'" co"dll.lon Ivr dw .... ard ar any COtItl"lCt. ,not. Ofl","",""" byme s~ of ALlIba~ •• "'f poUtlcal suWMsb\ thoHeol. Of 

any lU~furodtd ~ttty I'D" MIners ftltIIy) 

ely of MOIIntoin BruoI!, Ala ....... 

FORM FORSEcnONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON·HAMMON AlABAMA TAXPAYER AND OTIZEN PROTEcnON ACT; 
CODE OF AlABAMA, SEcnoNS 31-13·9 (a) and (b) 

S .. teof ALA~""A 

Counlyof :riffFeP-Co..J 

Before me. iI notary public. personally appeiln~d ~Ilbt(.l- 'f:''"1f'':.,TJL (print name) who, 

being duly !WOrn, SiVS as follows: 

As a condition for the award of any contract. lrant. or Inc.ntfve by the State of Alabama. any political 
$ubdivision thereof. or any state-funded entity to a business entity tr'Ployer that employs one or more 
employees. 1 hereby attest that In my C2PKltv as 11.e""N;iNC. r1~ I'-- {state position} 
for liM>'IJl~ LI6hTi>.lt:. L-.L-. <!.. (state business 

entity/employer/contractor name{that said business entity/employer/contractor shall not knowingly 
employ, hire fOf' empJoyment. or continue to employ an URiuthorized .alien. 

I further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor Is enrolled In the E-Verify prosram. (ATTAot A 
COPY OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E·VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO OOCUMENTTHATTHE 
BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPlOYER/CONTltl.CTOR 15 £NROillO IN THE E·VERIFY PROGRAM.' 

I further attest that all sub-contractors I employment are dulV enrolled In the E-Verffy program and upon 

request can produce the appropriate fo . .. --.... ;;;;:::!'i~~ octJon. 

Slgnattn of Affiant (an 

~~/...JV 
E-Verlfy User klentlfication Number 

Swomtoandsubscrlbedbeforem~thk LZ davof 4'Pn.1l- ,20'C 

I ,.mly that the affiant Is known (0' made known) to m. to ~.Ims to be. 

SlgnaM •• OO Seal of Nota'Y P II, SUNEE CAlES: 
My Commission Expl,es. _~..1llllllqJl?ullIi:,..AI~II!Ii- _IIU1g1 

(Se.o 
My Commissiln:~,*3o;2IIf'1 

. -

Project Coordinalor: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 ext, 3865 



NOTICE OF AlABAMA IMMIGRATION lAW COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS TO AU 

CONTRACTORS OF THE OTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, AlABAMA 

'"ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE CONTRACT") 

Asil ContrKtor. as defined In the Act. to TH£ OTY OF MOUNTAIN BROO«. AI.A8AMA rthe aty-1, It Is cridGal toyour 

r'NtIonsNp (future or continuina) wtth the 0Cy th.It you compIv wtth the: ImmItmIon Reform and Control Act at 191!16, AS 
ilmended by the ImmIp;ilUOn Act 0( 1590. and the 1k2SOn-"'mmon AYbima Tupayer.nd Otlten PrvtectIon Ad. Acc:Jonfinaiv. 
pleue pruvIde: yotIr Affidavit of Imrnlgadon Campltanoe with attached E-Vertfy Memo~ndum of UndersuncAnt. IS requested 

in the ~ched mernonndum. If you do not beRlM! these obIIpUons apply to you. please notify the Oty tmmedYtety. 

Effective January I, 2012., ~ contrKt entered Into by the CIty .. c.ontrattor will conliin the followlna cbUM or one 
subsunU,11y similar. 

Al.Iblma Immlcration Law Compliance Contract tonfndor'&ree$ tNt It will fuUv comply with the 
Immlll"3ldon Reform and ContrDI Act of 1.911&, as 'ma'lded by the ImmJatJtJon Act of 199O,.nd the: &eason
Hammoo ..... bam. Taxplycr and 0tI.ren ProtKt\on Art. whkh makes It unlawful for an employer In 

AI.1barnI to knowtnafy hire or continue to RmPoY .n .&en who b or has bettme unauthorUrd wtth ~ 
to such employment or to fall to cornpIt wtdItnc 1-9 l'eqWements orbls to use e.vC'l1fy to wtVy the 

eNribIitv to leplfy wort In Ihe: Unbd States foI' III of Il$ new hk'es who ate ~ to wort In the: Stale 
of AS.bamL Wrthcut IllTit!rc the fcwaOltl&. ContrKtDf sMIl not ~cmpIoy. hR for em~ 

01' mntInut to employ at! WUllIthort.zed allen, and wa hive In offIcet Of other ~ empktyee \IIha h 

penonaltoi bmllu with the Contractor's hlrlnc f"dkcs tc execute ~ .ftIdmt to this dfed on the lonn 
IUppHed by the BoMd and rmrn the SM1e tel the CIty. Contr.llctot wUIlso enroll In the [-verify p~ 

prior to performlnf: .anvwortl" orconUnulnl to perform any onlcine wcn.lnd stYli remain enrolled 
thl'DUlhout the entire c:oun.e of IU ~t'ICI! hereunder,arm shin attach to Its.fftdavtt the E·Vettfy 
Pro&nm lot' Employment Verification and Me:tfKnnllium of Undermndil\land such other lliocurnenr.Uon 
as the Board may require: to ccnfirm Contractor'. tfU'Qllment In the [.Verify PrI:JIr;tm. Contractor.1m!S 

not to ImowIn&fy allow any of Its subcatlttaacrs, Of' Iny ather poIrtv with whom It hu a contract, to employ 

in the State of A1aWinu any lIIepl or undocumentld aliens to perform any woftc in connection >Mth the 
Protect. and shallindude In all of ttl contnds. pnM:slon Sl.ibsmntJ.JUy slmlIM to this p.Jr.lpaph. If 
Contractor receives IctUlllmowiedae of the unauth:x1zed status of one of Its emp(orees in the State of 
Alabama, It will remove: that employf!e from the ~ject.jobsIte of premises of the Oty and shall comply 
with the ImmlfJIUCIn Reform and ContTOl k1 of UI6, u .mended by the ImmlvaUon Act of 1990, and the 
BeBJn-Hammon Alabama TaxpOlver and Ott!1!f\ Protettlon Act. CentractOf' stWl require each oftts 

subcDntrlctDn, or other patties with whom It MI a czmtrKt, to act In a slrnIbr fuhlon, If Contnctor 

violates any term at this proybIon, this Alreemen1 wYl be s.ubject to Immediate tefnl6Mtion lPi the City. To 
the fuKest ewtent pennlUed by aw, CDnt:ractor sNII defend, JndemnJfy and hold hmnIess the C1ty from any 
and" toss.es. consequential damates. ~ Pnducinr. but not Umlted to,.ttomey( lea). d&lml, suits. 
n.bIldes. ftnc:s, pcn6ltla. and any other arsts arhHIc out of or In.,,,, way ~ to Contractor', failure to 

futM Its cbiipdons ~ in thls Plf'lJRPh. 

Incorporat.cd 

.into contract 

adcS.end.UIIl , 

To the edent tNt there k 1\0 klnnal written contract between the CIty Md the Contractot" (e. ... where ~nes.s b 
conducted by PJrd\ase orderl. this dowment ShIll SliM IS eM ..... batN Immlamton CompBance: CDntrKt. 

A1abamalm~tIon Law eom,flaftCl: CotI~ Notice Adcnowt.dced and AIt'eed by ConttactOl whose ftltN 

IPII.'" below: 

PltlOI~ ellKUte and retum to THE em' OF MOUNTAIN BROOK. AlABAMA within the next 10 days. 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 ext. 3865 

i,.y 



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE BY A 
SUBCONTRACTOR TO A POUTCIAL SUBDIVISION 

OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
{To be ~ IS I CDIMiTIo" forw awatd of ItfV (tub)c:arltnc.t. pnt. CIoI' IncentW bytt. Sb~ of Abhml, any poI'tlQf wbcfMs.IDn 
thereof, at .rtJCJte-f\Ift6cd entIryta. bIAInaI cnttty. 10 It I£lWH£OTO,,"f CDHRACTOfI ~ GAAHTl[OFnt[OTYOf MOUHTAIH 
1It00", AlAIAMAJ 

FORM FORSECTlONS 9 (.)and (b) BEASON·HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND OTIZEN PROTECTlON Acr; 
CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTlONS 3HHI (a) and (b) 

Stot. of lIMi>&£I 

Countyo! ~FiCb..J'eJ 
Befvno mo,' notary public. pe""""IIy appe_ -:.(, ~ ..... P> ~. (print name) who, • being duly sworn. says as foIkJws: 

As a conditJon for the award of any [sub)conttKt. Isubllf'1l1t or Incentive by the Stolte of Alabilma. any 
political subdtvtslon thereof, or any stale-funded entity t~1 ent"! ~mployer that employ5 one or 
more employees, I hereby attest that in my apaclty as ~c. ~btI..-- (state 
posItIon)f ... /AW'YI.t. lI~tl7iiJC,t-,I-,I!.· (mt.busl .... 

enUty/empkJyer/contrKtor ~J t~.saI buslnes.s entltv/emp,oyerlJsub}cont:rxtar sh.1I not knowingly 
emplov. hire for employment. or c.ondnue to eomplov an unauthorized alien. 

I further anest that said business entity/employer/contractor b enroll.d In tile E-Verify Pl'CIf3m. (ATTACH A 
COPY Of YOUR ORGANIlATlON'S E·VERIfY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO OOCUMENTTHATTHE 

BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPlOYER/(SUB)CONTRACTOR IS ENROllED IN THE E·VERIFV PROGRAM.) 

I further attest that all sub-contractors In my empJovment are duly entUIled In the E-Verlfy prOBTam and upon 
request can produce the ilpproprLate forms verifying such action. 

E-Verify User ldenUfication Number 

Swam to.nd subsaibod before me this ;! ~ of-,A=~=.::'i-=--___ -;,'t 

I certify tmt the affiant is known {or made known'!l.lt,... ..... li<'iljrlCi 
g:?~-xr----

SUNEECATES ~ ~.w_ 

My Comm~'Ion Exp;r.,: -.:...--t-1~~~!;~AIabama State at· large , 
My COIiDillssU, ~J8n: 3O;~7; 

., ... -

" 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 exL 3865 

- . 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
TRE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx, INC. 
DATED , 2015 

THIS ADDENDUM ("the/this Addendum") to the principal agreement 
between the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX, INC. ("the Contractor") dated XXXXX, 2015. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but 
supersedes and controls any conflicting or inconsistent terms or 
provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent the 
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) 
confer greater rights or remedies on the Contractor than are provided 
herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) reduce, restrict, 
or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City 
under otherwise applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to any amendment, extension, or 
supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly 
acknowledged or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or 
representative of the City is authorized to waive, modify, or suspend 
the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions 
without express approval of the Mountain Brook City council. 

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have 
the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama, and its constituent departments, boards, 
and agencies. 

B. "The ( t his) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, 
agreement , proposal, quotation, or other document tha"(.. sets 
forth t he basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contract or is engaged to provide goods, materials, or 
services t o the City, including the payment or other 
consideration to be provided by the City in exchange 
therefore. 

C. "The Contractor " refers to the person, firm, or other legal 
entity t hat e nters into an agreement with the City to 
provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and 
includes vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, 
and services to the City with or without a formal contract 
as well as the Contractor ' s vendors, suppliers, and 
subcontrac t ors. 

2 . Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City 
agrees to arbit rate disputes or to engage in alternate dispute 
resolution (ADR) i f arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising 
thereunder or is a precondition to the pursuit of other legal 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2)90 ext. 3865 



available under such arbitration rules or processes do not afford 
the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, damages, 
etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, 
(2) the venue for the arbitration or mediation proceeding is in 
Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such proceedings 
(including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided 
evenly between the parties. 

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City 
shall not be liable for attorney's fees, court costs, litigation 
expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, 
costs, and charges would be assessed against the City under 
applicable law in the absence of any contractual provision' 
imposing or assigning liability therefore. 

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be 
liable for any late payment charges, interest, or fees on any 
delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate 
higher than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent 
per 

annum), but bills rendered to the City shall not be considered 
delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after renditicn of a 
complete and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills 
shall not be subject to late payment charges pending resolution 
of the dispute. 

5. Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; waiver; Limitations of 
Liability or Remedies. The City shall not and does not 
indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any 
claim, cause of action, cost, charge, fee, expense, or liability 
whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of 
the agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor 
shall or does the City waive its right to assert or pursue 'any 
remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against 
the Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any 
actual or alleged default or other breach of legal duty on the 
part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity 
therewith or acting on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or 
restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or extent 
of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be 
available to the City is expressly disavowed, excluded from the 
terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Choice of Law; Choice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal 
effect, and enforcement of terms and provisions of the agreement 
and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or relating 
thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama 
except to the extent otherwise required by applicable conflict
of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or legal 
proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any 
asserted breach of duty arising out of or relating to the 
performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be Jefferson 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 ext. 3865 



- - - - ~ 

applicable principles of law. 

7. Construction of Addendum. Nothing in this Addendum shall be 
construed to create or impose any duty or liability on the City, 
to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against 
the City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is 
available to the City against the Contractor or any other person, 
firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a 
matter of law. 

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agr~es 
that it will fully comply with the Immigration Reform and Control 
Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the 
Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which 
makes it unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or 
continue to employ an alien who is or has become unauthorized 
with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-verify to verify the eligibility 
to legally work in the United States for all of its new hires who 
are employed to work in the State of Alabama. without limiting 
the foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for 
employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien, and 
shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is 
personally familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices 'to 
execute an affidavit to this effect on the form supplied by the 
Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also 
enroll in the E-verify Program prior to performing any work, or 
continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall remain enrolled 
throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and 
shall attach to its affidavit the E-verify Program for Employment 
Verification and Memorandum of Understanding and such other 
documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's 
enrollment in the E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not r~ 
knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any other party 
with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama 
any illegal or undocumented aliens to perform any work in 
connection with the Project, and shall include in all of its 
contracts a provision substantiall y simil ar to this paragraph . 

If Contractor receives actual knowledge of the unauthorized status 
of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will remove 
that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City 
and shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 
as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon 
Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall 
require each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has 
a contract, to act in a similar fashion. I f Contractor violates 
any term of this provision, this Agreement will be SUbject to 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 « t, 3865 



permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, 
liabilities, fines, penalties, and any other· costs arising out of or 
in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its 
obligations contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this XXXXXXXXXX, 2015. 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx, INC. 
Alabama 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 ext. 3865 

City of Mountain Brook, 

By: 

Its: 



''''' W~9 Request for Taxpayer Give (orm 10 tho: 
~ .ltMdl?2MD Identification Number and CertificatIon R!~tet. Do no' ___. • .,..1,...., send to tho IRS. -_ ..... .. -, 

tJ~V,$ t t-h1111i iJ" L..t...c... 
~ IIIIMl. , dlf'erfl'lli'fom IIbcM 

• 
~i 0 .... -0IrJ:::IIt.~b:m:: 5cb~ [B'("""_ 0 ... _ o Othe,. " _ ••••• , •.•••••••• o """"' .... ..., .... - ... 

AI;td~', tIrfICI:.", Ipt. wtlllle_J -"I:~' D$ft3 nd t«tn:t !lIp!IIWIJ ill (,Ii. ST~ City of Mounfolft Brook 
~ ~~ In12JPCtldtt~ P. 0. Box 130009 

.§- ""..J;tII,J Ai.. .3'>.2.~ Moun .... Brook, AL 35213_ 

• I.ist KCN'III ~ h!I.~ 

oll - T.."aver Identification Number (TIM 

1
-_...-

l I + I + I 
or 

C cation 

""'" _ DlI>!9JI"I. t CMI"f """' 
1. Tho rumber ~ m ttlb: fcrm ismyc:crro:t t.Dp:;1Jer iduitllic:a::iot. nJ.mcr F 1;n1 ~ fa" numbr.rtobn 1nu;d to mQ. 1M 
L I am rIOlllJtlj;ct to b~ ~ be~ (.aJ I am ~ &om bKbJp ~iWlcldk9. 01' Lb. I hiM'! n:;;t beozn notM\ed by ~ IrI:f!I'nol 
~CI ScrW;.oa tlR$lfQf I ~ sut:F= 1Q ~ w!::t-n~mg a:l A n='f&4of ~ raltmt to R:(XIJt l1li ~1IJ;t IJI d~ Of ~ thO JRSIrm. 
Mtificd me thoJIl om PO bnQct ~tt to biitkup ~ .net 

J. I am a U·S. pGf500 {hCIl.dog B us. midim au ..... 
CetUncatioft Imttuc:tlons. You m.ISl cross IlUt Kem ,I above tI)'OJ fiMl been natA.'"d I:Jy the IRS dIQI: ycu art onenltj' !llljl!t1lD ba:~ 
~ ~ l'CU have tilled ID reptrt aI ~.m dMIfeOOs 4n )ICI.:t tax IlEUM Fclf tI!!.!l tI~ tr~ em 2: dcas noc applY'. 
tarnatgllge W11:erCst JlIIid. DCqcisiIian ~ alXiJdauitellt crseand property. ~ ~ ~ mrub.Aions to Ill1 in6rid1JO'l ~ 
.. ~M PRAJ. an::! Q~. p3ylJ"S1lS «bet ~ defst ar.d dMdenc!i.)'Cu are nol 1eq..&6d eo sign tfuI Cctti"atbt. bJt JDII mu5t 
FI:AUie yaL1' ttl'ffCl11tl tfte ImtnlCllDn, Q1 ""2J'I-<fI"" ____________ c-;,., _____ _ 
s;gn ,-
liert 

PUrpose or Form 
A p:1~ "'"" Is nq,uc:l III 1\1= 1m nfcnnKb1 
~n with !hi'! ut:S 1n.Gt (I" rour t~ 
~;ry'II' ~ I1o'IfIbIr cn~ ta nq:ut., fCII 
9:mpb.. ~ f.Dd la)'W. I'd n1IIIII 
~",X1ic:I1 .. m;w"~ .... ~ lOU p.nI.. 
acqui:J.IUcn D" :ilDld:lnrr¢1I ~ ~ Pf~t 
ance,oQjllO!'l c( ~ U oo~ ~ INd. 

""n""'-
0,. ronn W.' onIJ If JCi""" a U.s. pen.o.t 

In:iJ:!lllj i '1!~.!iMl ttl OM!)OIJf earatl 
lIN I.D UIA fief"'" I~ it I)hcI n:=;tmtc:d 
and. UIfIm ~ tEr. 

1. ~ IhD tw p #egMr.;Atrned tJr 
)CIU a'C wtit.'r:g hr A tMI1~ to ~ 1UuoodJ. 

L Cettl'y -p; ~ me :tbp:l ~ ~ 
~~.CI 

1. 08n'\ HerrpUat rtom NOup~"O r 
:JQlfl'IZ.lU.$ O1I~piiJ)'CI:. 

1f)'CMt .... fortiQn ~n.en. ""- Il'1O 
~F_W"'SeaPlb.515. 
Wltt'hllcSl!!!J ct rh: ~I\ ~1I1'(.t.~II"'1 
F"1CtI~trtll:in. 

Natr.. tf d'~ g)t"J JCU _/Qrm O!~ WI') 
Fotm "'" Ie) ~ JCVf. Mp.r::w;: ~ fN 
l'I.I~t'l"!I knnifilo ~'""lI."r"" 
fMll "til. 

""" ill MmDldina1 ~ 1Nl1r.g: 
caW! ~ to:p: n:s.ct t:ndtr a:rnsn 
~1Jl1i l'II=hhdd n 08"1 to U"'I 5RS iIl'iao« 
5IICh ~ ahcf" tJrcmb:r , t. 2::01 .;Mt. 
.n.cr ~er :Jl 2tm). nm ~ CIIled "bII~ 
~d)1g."P~htmayoa ~w 
beI::kIp VIQItld~ lncIudIt InUns1. d~ 
~~boIUrp~~RJ'It1,. 
tO~ «mlll~ PIt. 4rd cttSotiB 
~ fIt1m. ft5ftnO DGa r:ggr;'oIII'J. RW 
o\tlla ~s lin: not cuJjecl to bllotialp 

."""'~. 
Vou'ldll rctba ~ to _~ .. ~~ 

011 PI~ )1):1 rKtMt«.,ru gN9 ~ 
rc~ yar c=tnK1 m. rrJ:M ~ fRF 
~oCi~ en:! ,epotl ill )W laI'~ I:tltf~ 
~ clMOcr.m m ycu tal[ ~ 

P~,mmu rw naIfa d bel RI*cI to 
b.adalp 1IIi1hhoId!ng if: 

1. Ya.t tb nr::t fI::n1~)«.l: n: III th:I 
l~mltt".Of 

1. 'feu tb ml Cet"'.lt p:r i1J,I ¥.ten ~1!1l 
Ir.- CIa ~ II Irctn:alDrn. en pw,jIl 2' :ct 

-~ ~. The IRS ttl!! r.oteqtlt!lltr t/I4t you 
1ur:'It5IlIId¥l~llk.u 

.. 't!!.IRS"h)WWl1lN.O~W 
hDcb!p ~ bccalllll')aoI dG I'ICIt tqtrt 
all ytu ~ ud ~ on )O'J' I.SII ft(tm 

,,01' I~ amElG. 1m dMlS:I'ia'i 01'111). " 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 exl. 3865 

1. Y do net IQ tnc n:qteslJ::r ~I)I )'011 
~ rei ~tp;a t<lt ~ oa.flH'gtSiftg trrIdar" 
iblNll CSOr 'epcI'l6bItIlrt'~..l1l1!d rJ\oickt!d 
~Un.~~" chor 191;1 cwrt 

c...run ~ Ina: ~ 1116@'lItfT1C' 
ftom lIO(~ tWJ~. Sfc Iha in:;olr.w;tI !iii on 
p:gc: Z IR1 tt'-o AplI'D InWVeUan$ fttr tne 
RequesI.I:r cI Form \V.,. 
Ponaltlos 
f dt.la \0 n.nI,m TIN, If )'011 tllllO ruu:m )"'..&:1' 
CCIrecl ~l to a re~. F.,re ~ kill 
;l8:1Il1tY ,r S!50 k$.&en kith rllft.'I1I ~ yt:U' 
bb.fto IS dllll 10 R::I~ tllC~ ~ not tel 
...mil r.ffjtcL 
CivIl pauh, tor f~ ~ with rapQCl 
~ ~.I( )<g" "'Ii:a" f!!be Sl:ltcmtllll 
IIofttl = te::lcn:I~ =sb IN'! rn.uc:s In "" 
~ vAL"thCldng,)eN I$I'~ SI.b}!C1 ~ 1I l!iOO 

"....'" cmMnaI pmllU rat f~Jlng Wormawn.. 
wn!i.:l~ ~'Jf)VIg (zt1iJk::iirrs cr ~ 
m..~ WIlJiC1 )'011 II) IC'1ImnS! crmtles illWdng 
r~ Ilndb ",~. 

,...,., vi TlHs. If th: ~ .. 'C':Iolcr~:s. or 
I~; nr~ h'dd~IUI01 rtdErab.",1h: 
~sur!MY te ~II:I CYt alia Q\lItIMl 
~~~ . 

lum W-g ~.' HOOZ) 



Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 exl. 3865 

P.,. Z 

""""--_ .... KCIIUI'IIIW,'_ 

J. ~_" • _ tI.hf_ an. 

e""''''' 4 . ... n.~ --...... "-'lllIrfltlllln .......... 
b s.c.Iotd..,,, 1ICtDUN __ • ....... _-_ .. 

J.5cIIII~ 

............. ~ .... ~. 

"'"-' 

",,~- ' 

1"' __ ' 

I. SoMII'D:I'''-' n. __ ' 
1 . "nlidllVSl.~LDI' ~ ... ,, ' ...- ..... 
L Carp:7M n.''''PO',\II:If'I 
1. ~~ The..,.,u.... 
~Q'oe.. .,-
....,.~ 

to. "-"tst.ip "" ~ 
11 "'_'"'nv'IIorTd 1"'~._ -II.=.:,:"CII'''' ThIIpMr: ....... 

:r.-=::':;= 
al."'_iIDu/ 

C:--~1IIM - ......... .... -....-. 
'u."", ... __ .. __ ... ~_ 

.....,.,., ~ ''''' 1Ir'Ie,..,... ..... )an IICICa<N "" ... SSN. _ ~'I ___ ~ to-........ 
'CIodt ........... ....,. """""",,I" _ ",SSH. 

·'ou_w-,...........,_""'P'....., .. 1IO_,..... __ "'OIIA·-.''''''_1 ... 
..... )CU' SSN .. DN, JW ~ In$. 
'l;" ...... WId c""- u.. _ CII' IMIiIoP ..... Na • . 

Of poIftSIarI W$l.1Do ,.. """"'" ... JW d .... ""teN! ---., ___ ..,..-,_10 
nDllIn9'fI.:l",1M _ ~ 

Note: U no namI' is ~ when mort !han 
~ MIJII! is listed. 1M tunbet '11M be 
consIdemJ fa be that 011"" foI N~ bt«l 



Limited LED Product and Driver 
Deco Ughting warrants that the LED electronics and components of its properly installed LED Product will be free 
from defects in material and workmanship for a period of ten (10) years. 

This warranty is limited to the repair and replacement of parts and the necessary labor and services required to 
repair the LED Product, as provided below. Defects in material or workmanship do not include improper installa
tion or operation, alterations, power surges or overheating due to extemal conditions. 

THIS LIMITED WARRANTY IS THE EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY PROVIDED BY DECO LIGHTING. DECO LIGHT
ING MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AND THERE IS EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED 
ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

Warranty Activation 

This limited warranty is automatically activated upon Deco Lighting receiving a completed warranty registration 
form within thirty (30) days after installation of the LED Product or ninety (90) days after shipment of the LED 
Product, whichever is sooner. Upon receipt of a timely submitted and completed warranty registration form, Deco 
Lighting will forward an acknowledgment for each registration along with a reference number for future correspon
dence related to that LED Product. 

Service Claims 

Service claims can be made by contacting Deco Lighting's Customer Service by calling: 1-800-613-DECO 
between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM pacific standard time (USA) to initiate the process for problem resolution under this 
limited warranty. Deco Lighting may elect to inspect the product on the customer's premises, or issue an RM 
number so that the product may be retumed to the factory for testing. RM numbers will only be issued to the direct 
purchaser of the LED Product from Deco Ughting. The following information is required to obtain a RM number: 

• Company name and address and contact person . 
• Deco Lighting part number, date code, quantity and description of the problem. 

All product warranty retums, repairs, replacements or credits are handled between Deco Ughting and the direct 
purchaser. Attach a brief written description of the problem to the product or packing list along with the RM number 
that was issued. Retum the product, freight prepaid, to: Deco Lighting RMA Dept 2917 Vail Ave. Commerce, CA 
90040 

Labor Options 

No labor allowance is made for repair or replacement of any LED Product except during the limited warranty 
period. Deco Ughting provides the following two labor options for service under this limited warranty, which Deco 
Lighting has the exclusive right to select in its sole discretion: 

1. Deco Lighting will contact a service provider and coordinate the removal, repair, and/or replacement of 
a defective LED Product, at no cost to the user of LED Product or 

2. Deco Lighting will reimburse the direct purchaser of the LED Product the reasonable, customary, and 
necessary costs for removing and replacing the LED Product. However, Deco Lighting shall not be responsible for 
reimbursing for any such costs that are not pre-approved, in writing, by Deco Lighting prior to those costs being 
incurred. 

le?n1S n"".n I inhfinn Inr. All rioh'" r ... erved. 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 Church St. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, J\IABl\MA 35213 
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER) 

BID COVER SHEET 
Bid Request Posted is Date: 04/0812015 Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: 0412212015 @2:00 p.m. 

To Whom It May 

Bids shall be seale 
Brook, Alabama, p 
specified above or 

and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City ofMoWltain 
or to the above specified date and time. Bids shan be publicly opened at the date and time 

soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered b the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited to, Ala. Code 
(1975) §§41-16-50 et seq. and 31-13-1 et seq., and provide documentation of enrollment in the E-Verify 
program pursuantt Ala. Code §31-13-9. 

AU bidders must u e the bid form provided by the City for the project This Bid Cover Sheet should be 
completed and sub itted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be clearly 
marked "SEALED ro" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is submitted 
and the date of bid pening. 

The City reserves th rightto require a bid bond, in which case specific information sbaU be provided with the 
request fur bids. 

The City reserves e right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining thc lowest responsible bidder, in 
wbich case specific formation sball be provided with the request fur bids. 

o accept or reject aDY or all bids and to waive fonnalities. 

Sa hasing Agent 

SpecificatioDs for roject No. MI 001-2015: ViUage Lighting Project throughout the City of 
Mountain Brook- ublic Works Department. 

CITY ....!..LU'-"'u.r~l-"''''-=----- STATE A I ZIP --=~,-,5=----=:2:...:'2.=-7....=-_ 

$ '1 (p '\r. 1~ UNI7! (AS PER SPECIFICA7!IONS) 

Note MUNlCD'ALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 

Xhis bid am.t be ~igned be~o .. by b1dder's pri.ndpiU/officer/lI.gene and DOt:a.r.iZad: 

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this 
Auth. yof 2015. 

Name: __ ~~~~~~~~~L-~~~ __________ _ 

Title: __ ~~~~QQ~ ________________ _ 

Project Coordin8lor: R Id Vaughn (205) 802-2390 ext. 3865 



SPECIFICATIONS FOR: PROJECT NO. MI 001-2015: Village Lighting Project 
throughout the City of Mountain Brook, Public Works Department. 

The City of Mountain Brook, Alabama will be accepting bids for approximately 105 LED 
retrofit light fixtures for existing pole top acorn fixtures. The fixtures shall be 

Amerlux RF AVI-U-SY-27L 

or equal. 

Specifications: 

1 8-12" telescoping field adjustment 
2 IP66 rated sealed LED chamber and optics 
3 Standard 10 KV surge protection in addition to over voltage or short circuit 

protection 
4 2700 Kelvin 
5 Color is in a four (4) McAdams Ellipse quadrant 
6 Standard 10 year/SO,OOO hour warranty 
7 Anodized cast aluminum heat sink 
8 Automatic AC incoming voltage sensing 120-277 volt 50/60 hertz 
9 Symmetric distributions. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

The successful bidder must obtain a city of Mountain Brook business license. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

This bid shall be good for a period of 12 months from the time a purchase order is issued. The City 
reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities without a change In bid price. Bidder should 
provide a unit cost as its bid amount. Bidder shall also provide any shipping or additional cost to City 
of providing the fixtures. The bid amount SHOULD NOT include installation cost as installation is 
beyond the scope of the bid request. 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 exL 3865 



I ~ I Not •• , 

J.S. COTNEY, INC. 

AVISTA LED Light Engine 
U.7 1' ' 4 

APPUCATlON: 
LED Ught engine tor use En post top mount area 
and pedestrian environments. Designed ror new 
fixtures or existing as a retrofit. 

INSTALlATION: 
Height adjustable Ughl Engine· Can be field 
adjusted to optimal performance. LED retrofit kit 
mounts to many existing luminaires. 

ELECTRICAL: 
• Automatic AC Incoming voltage sensing 120-277 
• Over voltage and short c ircuit protection 
• lOkv surge protec.tor 

CONSTRUCTION: 
• Anodized Aluminum Heat SInk 
• IP66 Rated 
• Cost aluminum finer plate provided 
• Sealed LED chamber and optlc..$ 

tf'lo lT 

AVIISYIXX 

SY 
(Syrrwnelrit:) 

AS 

r , .... 
L 

~.16' 

I 
AVII AS I XX 

DISTRIBUTION: 
SV - Symmetrlc 
AS - AsymmetliC 

EFFICACY: 
Up to 100 lumensl wolt 

NOMINAL INPUT POWER: 
4 IW.IIJW 

CCI: 
3000K. 4000K. SOOOK 

UFE: 
SQ,OCXJ+ hO'rU::."'-__________ -I 

ITlo l~' 

AVI·II SY I xx 

Approx. Lurnens 
Dehvered 

Nom nollnput 
Power 

EJ 
www.om9rlurexlerlor.com • 5220 Shonk Rd. Pearland. Texas 77581 • (T) 281.997 5400 • (F)2Bl ~997-5441 

a 

AVI 
LED 

PROJECT: 

lYPE: 

SY POlAR GRAPH 

.......... ~.D7a:6~Iq_N9'I.~yWIt:d""V't.Q., 
11.~ ....... ~ __ " ·IQ~~_Cd) 

12._C-O~"""""~~(II'G.OI_CdJ 

~ 
amerlux,. 



"'OM: 1'11E an Of MOUNTAIN IMIOOtC 
ATTN: STEVEN lOONE 

NOTICE 

P. O. BOX 13CIJ09. MOUNTAIN BROCIIC. AlABAMA 35lll..Q2.009 

The IUJX>SOrllIII5MemoraNlum Istaolortyoutatho_ ... ~ IJIwCclfnFllna! _ 
_ 1hIt beI>mo_cnJonuory I. 2012. _""_ ",""""", ... 110_ .. _ 

1. 'AOVIDEThe CIty orMa_1n Bnlok ("the CIt()-. .................. rtIns your """"'10 .... with the 
immip"atlon lawbytlmolysubmlttf ... _rtzed_ct_lmi ........ , ","""","",,,,,.-.... 
~~IDDPoHtftd~tl/lN.s:rvkofNo6omcJmdanE.ycrtf;Memon.ndumor u __ 

3. PACMDE your subc:oi,bac:tols notice ofthe{ra:wnpf&l~ obfIptiofts.nd OBTAIN from ucha nobtrtled A./JdINtt 
ct-.. .. _ComoI ..... ""o-._. 
The ~ above, lmposed Or HI 56..re -. mndIUon for the..anl 01.", mnb'ad;.pant. or II'C:I:ftIfft by 

the State of Allbama. any pofttlcal subdNtsIon the"eaf. or any state-funded enthy to. business entIry« employer tM' 
employs one or more employees Iwonctnlln the Stile of Alabama1 . d As. Conb'lctor on Grantee. " you beReve these 
obI1ptlotos do not.ppIy to YOU. ~ notify tho CIty Immcdiotoly. 

Foryourc:anll'elllau, we tw...1nduded far your use I sa_AFROAVlTOF N..NJAMA tMMIGfIAnOH COM9lJANCE 
fff • BUSINESS ENlllY /!MPLO'IEI!/CIlH11 TO APCIU11CAI. SUBIlMS10N Of' lHE 5T'~ Of NJJWI.A. _ CIII!IpIet~ 

-. "'" """'" """ .. TheCkyd-..-_ ...... wIIh ...... _ E-1/EJOfY MEMORANDUM Of 
UNO£RSTNONG. Set AJA CXJOE t 31·lJ.9fcJ. 

You In! also requffed to obtiIln from your sutx:ontraaDrIa notartred AFfIDAVIT CF IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE B't' A 
5UBCDNTRACTOR.A catwl\il ~ of the brmd ddlnIdon below Dflhetenn -Conmctor" in the ~wtI mlstyou In ~ to ....... to....,.._ 

W""'_ wIIh""""thon one IocII """'"" . -"- you wIIonIy.-ta_ .... _ conopIetedand-. 
...t then ~. copy to the requestfrc~ enUd& 'Iouwe requft!dto n1IIntaIn yoc,r p , itlac.1LN" ~.t 

you'~ These doclIrnents~be suIIf«t to .... You mf'tP'cMde. mpyolthb Ma ..... 1dum wIh'lCQ"ldIft", IS 

"OEi' "" .. 1Cbn to your subaa Iti .. mrs IS ~n exp&m.tion fer dis mandItaty requft:ment. 

........ ,... will find, N01lCE Of Al.A8AMAIMMIGRAna< lAW CXlMPtJNICE R!IIJIRfMEN1STOAU. 0lNTIIACrtlftS 
Of THE aTYOf MOUKr"'lROOf<.lUMMArAIAIAMA _TIONCOMPUAHCE 1XlH1"MC1")"'---by 
arirxtolS and to be returned to the Otv of Mountain BrooIt. To th!! mer« that theft! Is no fotnaI written CDnCnICt berwftn I 
contractor and the Oty (e.c.. where busIness is mndur:ted bv ~ arderJ. this docttrnent shell seM! IS 'IQD' Alabama _Corrc>Ia .... Cor>tJwct. ___ .... be_ln .. ruwre_""'_ ....... edwllhlhe 

CltydMo<nmIlrnol>. 

AlA. mOll n·I3-9I_) aN lb.,See I\tm:l/ww Mpsillul U)l!~I""""".tlo!!·N..!'.· 2011.SU. ". .... b _COIIAed lei ALa.. CDO£ H 
JI·Dl1G lHDOuWdal t JZ~IthR·AQ" 
"~l:Iddfttd tnaltrln lhIN1u .,. ...... ~.CI'taI*II!IIaa., .. erun_~~., ptrftImI ... ___ ClfWOft ot 

., ~ II ar* paducl'" ~ ......... ~ ,.. ~ ltv. nbIt. ... rd be.,.... tIt.. eer1II!I'II o:nncttr. 
~.~~.CD"ItrIICt~praIa:llN/Ull!f.CIf.~ClflQffkoefllf/Jly.·AlA.ClXl:KlZ·tJ.3m 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802·2390 0<1. 3865 



NOTICE OF AlABAMA IMMIGRATION lAW COMPlIANCE REQUIRfMENlS 10 AU. 

CONTRACTORS OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, AlABAMA 

rAIABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE CONTRAClj 

As I CcnttlQar. u deftned In the Act. to THE em OF MOUNTAIN BftCXJK. AlAIAMA rthe Dtof).llis crttkaI to your 

~tadonshlp (future or COfttInuIfW) ... dHt CIty tbI1 VOl! CI:IInP't with the •• wi •• lb. Reform ind CantraI Ad: of 1!NI6, as 

IcnI!ndIdbythl!l~ActalU9O,andthe~·Hamnon"'r
naT~.ndCltlzen~AI;t. AccanfInsly, 

_ ....... _ AIftcIo,ft oIlrrmIpatIon Carnc>lb0Cl! """ _011 E-v..1fy Memorandum oIU"de .. "' ...... as....,.....ud 

intht attached memcnndum. If'you do nat btReve these obIIpttons .... ., you. please nattfy dttOCy JmmedInefr. 

~'t'e JaI'Iuuy 1. 2012. weryCDntrKt eftteted IntD by ttle CIty. contractorwAI contIln the: ~dwse Cirone 

substintlalJy IImlar: 

AJ.bamllmmlpaUon Uw Corr1IIInce Cantt.ct: Contractor aptes tNt It wtn fultvCXJmplvwfth 1he 

ImrrqmJon Reform and COntrol Act of 19M. as""'" brtfwllmmllJ .Ib. Ad of U90. and !he IeI:son

HImmon AWNm. T~ and CItIzen PrDtllCdon ~ whIch"...1tes It: un1Iwtut for an ~ In 

AIabamI ta IInowtrwfy ... or COtI1int1t to employ .n aIen who Is til has betDmrt unauthorIud 'MIdI respect 

to sud\ errJI1O'yrnent Of to'li tocornply"tMttI the 1.., ~ententJ or r.ts to use E-vertfr to II'eItfy the 

eIIaIbIIrY 110 IepIIv Mri: in the I.JnIUd StIle for .. 01 ttl MW .... who ate ~ 10 wurtc 'n the SlIte 

of Alabaml. WIthout Iimltt". th. forw&OnL ContnIttoJ wi nat tnowinatv employ. hire far employment. 

orcorrttnue to employ an tNUthortzed llen.1nd shIIt hive en olfket orothet ~ ~who IS 

penat\IIIy r.ma.r with the ClIntr8ctar's ~ pf'XIkas to I!I«lU an .fIIdavtt to this effut on the form 

~ both &oIrd.nd rtttrn till! swne to the Oty. Contractor shaft .... cnrolln the (.verlfy".....m 

prtor to perlorrnfna."., wort. 01" condnuInto to perform .., mlOCnl waR. .., INI ~ enrolled 

ttrrouPout Ute entw mun. 0111:5 ~ hert\l'Nlet', and shaD attach to 1ts.1'Rdavtt the (-verify 

f'rDrrarn far fmplcryment vertflaUon and Memcnndurn of UndentIndIrII .nd such other cIocUrnentdon 

as the 80Inf rMY rtqUIrt: to conSnn Con!ndor"s~1n the E-Vettry ~ Contndcr a&f1!I!S 

nGC to knowIntfy ..,. .ny of ItS ~ or 'ny ather party wtd'I whom tt hn • CDntr'ICt. to employ 

In tnt Sbte of Alabama lfrll\epl or Itndoaaneftted liens 10 perform .rrf ~ k1 c::cnnect1on ....tth thI! 

ProIed. and shall Indu6e In" Mitt t:IWItt"aI:U. pnMston JUbstantiliv shHIrto this PIRIf'IICIh. tf 

Conb'aa:or ~aauaI knowIedce of1ht LI'IIuthortzed ItitUS of one of Its employees In the State of 

..... "" ...... _ ..... __ ... _~"'''_oI'''''Cltyand",..compIy 

wttt\ thllmmlpatJon ftefotm Ind Controf Act ~ JJI6, I' ~ br' the Itam.llraISon Act of 1990. Ind the 

8eason-HItNnon AI.IbimI TpPIJa' and Otkcn ProtKtion Act. ContrKt:or sNll"!q,*e sch of ttl 

subcoftt~ctors. or other plrtJes with whom It hu. omtracr. to act In • SImMIr fashion. tf ContrKtor 

'oioIatesq term oIthb pnMsIOn, thbApftmcm"" be: IIItIfcct to 1mmI!ct.t. tmMudon bV 1M Otv'. To 

ChI! hIAest ertem pennmed by 1oIw, Coritnc1or sn.II dtfeftd,lndemnIfr MIl hold harmless the Oty fmm .ny 

Ind all Jossa. consequantlal damqes. ~ (IncWIn&. but not nmttrd to, attorneys' fees), dims. sutts. 

WlIIde:s. ftnes. penahia, nd.,., otfte' CGStIIrts&wouta#arln "'wrr~ to CDntractor's failure \0 

fWIII M$ obBpUons c:ont.8IMd In tIIIs~. 

lncorporat.ed 

into eont.r.et: 

addendUln . 

To the utenc Nt there tl no formal wrlnen cont:rKt ~ the orr Md d1e Conb"Ictof lei-. ~ bLlSiness b 

mnducted bv ~ order,. this cfocutNnt m.I __ IS the. Alabama IrnmJaration Compliance Contract. 

Project Coordinator: Ronald Vaughn (205) 802-2390 ext. 3865 



AFFIDAVIT OF AlABAMA IMMIGRAOON COMPUANC[ BY A 

BUSINESS ENTrTY/EMPlOYER/COI<l1<ACTOR TO A POUTlCALSU8DIVISION 

OF THE STATE OF AlABAMA 
p etit UI~IH 111 II1II41"" 'Dltlot .""" •• ""'YUII'Uan, '"~. III'IrIot<II~'" lilt Stair fill AI."" ••• , IIOildLl' 5U~ ''''rnt. . ... 
l"f 11alt-l'Un4r:l. nutY uo, WSIIo tll.I:I'f\') 

orv af Moumaln Irool. N.bMna 

FORM FOR SECTIONS 51 (aland (bl SEASON·HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND anZEN PRoncnON A.G; 

COOE OF AlABAMA. SECJIOHS 31-1H (.).nd (b) 

,,..,.1 *1--6 f!-n1 A-
CDunty of ::f2 P-P-j 4!:.J .J 

Bof.", "" . ' n.t.", DUbll,. "."on.lly ",,,,,,,,6r J a.,.) C 0 /4 /,1 VI <l1P'1.' n,m,} w .... 

bell'll dufy sworn, urs ~s follows : 

As ~ «Iodil'on for IhI' ~""~rd 01 ~nv conttact. ,ran1, DI Incentl .. e by the SUIte 01 Alabama, Inv political 

~ubdivision thereof. or Iny state·fundc4 entity to l~Slness entitY or employer that C'mpro~s OM or more 
employe", I hereby atust that In mv Ulp.:lrf ft J...) It! it! iD/1 ap 14;,( n;5H:tlstJtt position) 
'Of ~1:jtf'" f ('~·c 7'77 /-t:: $upe { I.,r ('0 .J:"ve;.. (IUt. bullMsl 

mttfy/~/cOtftr;K;l.ot' t'QtTIeJ I~~ SOIIk1 buslneSCntfttJempfoycl/CDtlfrJClOf ,twin not .~y 
rrnpioy, hlrr (Ot' employment, or c.onUI'I~ 10 empkJy an UlWluthDrltHi ,n~n. 

I further ,nest th~t said business enthy/employer/conIrOiC1or is enrolltd In the E-Verify program. IATTACH II 
COP'( Of YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E.vERIFY MEMDAANOUM OF UNOUSTANDfNGTO DOCUMENT THAt THE 

BUSINESS ENnTY/ Et.t',"OV£R/CONTJlACTOR IS ENROllED IN nlE [ ·V'fAlfY PROGRAM.) 

' furthe r Itten Ihat all sub-contractors In my employment'~ dulV enrOlled In the E- rrty pfotr. m . nlf upon 
t lequH'! an produu the appropt~11e lOfms vttffy(ftI such 

E·Vlertfy Vliet Idtnt lfh:atiOf'l Number 

A.n • \ 
5 .... 0'" 10 and ~ubSCflbed bdore me this ~dl'" oI---!...!f_.!:r".c:.. ____ ~ 2E!J 

I ,enltv I~t the am .. nl b known lor tn_dill! known} to I'M lobe the Idlel'ltiQl party"e or she claims 10 bt . 

"~nd~~~ 



ORDINANCE NO. 1937 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR STOP SIGN ON BROOKWOOD ROAD 
AT ITS INTERSECTION WITH CROSSHILL ROAD AND 

TO PROVIDE FOR PUNISHMENT THEREOF 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:  
 
 Section 1.  It shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle to cause or allow such vehicle 
traveling in a southerly direction along Brookwood Road to enter its intersection with Crosshill Road 
when there is standing at such intersection a “Stop” sign facing in the direction of such driver without 
having first brought such vehicle to a complete stop within ten (10) feet of said intersection. 
 
 Section 2. Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be punished by a fine 
not to exceed $500.00, or by imprisonment not to exceed 180 days, or both. 
 
 Section 3. All ordinances or portions of ordinances conflicting with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 4. If a court or competent authority finds that any provision of this ordinance is 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, that provision or part-provision shall, to the extent required, be deemed 
to be deleted, and the validity and enforceability if the other provisions of this ordinance shall not be 
affected. 
 
 Section 5.  This ordinance shall become effective when published as required by law. 
 
ADOPTED:   This 10th day of August, 2015. 
      ___________________________________ 
      Council President 
 
APPROVED:  This 10th day of August, 2015. 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 

 



CERTIFICATION 
 
 I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain  Brook, 
Alabama, at its meeting held on this 10th day of August, 2015, as same appears in the minutes of record 
of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on August _____, 2015, at the following public 
places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 
 
City Hall, 56 Church Street   Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road  The Invitation Place, 3150 Overton Road 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stop Sign on Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road                                       1937 



Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road 

The intersection of Overbrook Road at Crosshill Road was examined to determine the scope of both 
non-widening and widening projects which could alleviate existing traffic congestion experienced at the 
intersection. The general study area for the analysis is shown in Figure 1. 

Figure 1. Site Location Mop 

In the vicinity of the intersection, Brookwood Road is a two lane roadway with a posted speed limit of 30 
miles per hour. Crosshill Road is a two lane roadway with no posted speed limit. The configuration of the 
intersection is an offset intersection, forming two traffic triangles on Brookwood Road, separated by 
approximately 165 feet. The configuration of the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road and 
the current location of stop signs in shown in Figure 2. 

Figure 2. Existing Traffic Control 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 1 



Existing Intersection Turning Movement Traffic Counts 

An existing intersection turning movement traffic count was performed at the intersection of 
Brookwood Road at Crosshiil Road on Wednesday to Thursday, March 11 to 12, 2015, during the hours 
of 7:00 to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 to 6:00 p.m., by Traffic Data, LLC on behalf of Skipper Consulting, Inc. The 
traffic count data is included in Appendix A. Peak hour turning movement traffic volumes are illustrated 
in Figure 3. 

Figure 3. Existing Intersection Turning Movement Traffic Counts 

Existing Intersection Capacity Analysis and Queue Calculations 

Existing a.m. and p.m. peak hour intersection capacity analyses and queue calculations were performed 
for the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshiil Road using the methods of analysis contained in the 
Highway Capacity Manual, published by the Transportation Research Board. Capacities are expressed as 
levels of service, and range from a level of service "A" (highest quality of service) to a level of service "F" 
(jammed conditions). As a general rule, operation at a level of service "c" or better is desirable, with a 
level of service "0" considered acceptable during the peak hours of traffic flow. The results of the 
intersection capacity analyses and queue calculations are included In Appendix B and are summarized in 
Table 1. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 2 



Table 1. Intersection 

liitafi#iiffan 4~di 

. '"", ... ;. ond Queue Calculations ~ 

',fiiwilr-e ~ ~ ft' ~ • II ' . ,./f. ~ ... .!I!.~ ' . . 

Crosshill Road Left F 52 395' B 14 100' 
Westbound Right C 17 A 5 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road A 7 
20' 

A 3 
0' 

Crosshill Road Northbound Right A 5 A 3 
(North) Brookwood Road l.eft F 109 55' A 9 65' 

Southbound Tnrougn F 66 480' A 10 70' 
QV;;ra]f D 34 A 8 

Crosshill Road Left D 33 
380' 

A 12 
lOS' 

Eastbound Right B 15 A 7 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road --wi A 6 
30' 

A 6 
25' 

Northbound A 4 A 2 Crosshill Road 
(South) Brookwood Road I nrougn A 3 

0' 
A 4 

0' 
Southbound Right A 4 A 3 

ov;,~ C 18 A 7 

Note: Delay is expressed in average seconds per vehicle 

Crash History 

Crash information for the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road was provided by the City of 
Mountain Brook Police Department for 2012, 2013, and 2014. During the period, there were three 
crashes related to the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road. One crash was a rear-end crash 
on Cross hill Road eastbound. Two crashes were right angle crashes, with one of the crashes occurring on 
Crosshill Road eastbound and the other crash on Crosshill Road westbound. A crash diagram is provided 
in Figure 4. 

3/13/20 12 
J:4$ PM 
mURSDAY 

DRY 
DAYl./GliT 
CLOUDY --

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 

Figure 4. Crash History 

Nonn 
Scale: n.u 

Page 3 



Sight Distance 

Sight distance measurements were made for all movements at each of the intersection for all 
movements where sight distance of approaching vehicles is required in order to make the desired 
movement. The minimum required sight distance according to the AASHTO Policy on the Geometric 
Design of Highways and Streets (Green Book) is 335 feet, based on the posted speed limit of 30 miles 
per hour on Brookwood Road. The sight distance measurements are shown in Figure 5 and Figure 6. 

The only location where sight distance is limited below minimum requirements is for traffic entering the 
southern intersection of Crosshill Road looking to the right (Point "A"), where the sight distance is 
limited to 170 feet. In the narrative for the crash which occurred at this intersection on March 13, 2012, 
the driver of the vehicle entering Crosshill Road stated that she did not see the vehicle approaching from 
Brookwood Road. 

-- Nnnh 
SC2Je: n.t.1i 

Figure 5. Sight Distance Measurements Crosshill Road (South) 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 4 



N Oflh 
Scale: n.u 

Figure 6. Sight Distance Measurements Crasshill Rood (North) 

Additional fie ld work was undertaken to determine the cause for the limitation of the sight distance 
looking to the right from Point "A" on Figure 5. The sight distance limitation is caused by numerous 
objects, including landscaping on either side of the driveway of 3329 Brookwood Road, a tree in the 
front yard of 3329 Brookwood Road, and undergrowth at the northern edge of the property line of 3329 
Brookwood Road. Pictures depicting the sight distance restrictions are given below. All of these 
obstructions would need to be removed in order to have adequate sight distance from Point "A" for at 
least 335 feet, which is approximately the location of the existing stop sign on Brookwood Road 
southbound at the northern intersection of Crosshill Road. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 5 



Observations 

Observations of traffic flow at the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road were performed on 
Tuesday, May 12 and Wednesday May 13, 2015 by Skipper Consulting, Inc. Observations were 
conducted from 7:15 to 8:00 a.m., 2:30 to 3:20 p.m., and 4:45 to 5:30 p.m. The findings of the 
observations are discussed below. 

AM Peak Period Observations 

• While traffic flow was constant, the eastbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto 
Brookwood Road caused congestion and delay for the eastbound right and 
northbound left movements from 7:37 a.m. to 7: 53 a.m. This problem persisted 4 
other times during the study period. 

• Similarly, the westbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto Brookwood Road 
caused congestion and delay for the westbound right and southbound left 
movements during the study period. However, the problem was minimal in 
comparison to the eastbound movement as it only persisted 2 times during the 
study period. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 6 



Afternoon School Peak Period Observations 

• The eastbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto Brookwood Road did not cause 
any congestion or delay during the study period. 

• The westbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto Brookwood Road caused 
congestion and delay for the westbound right and southbound left movements 
multiple times during the study period. However, no instance where movements 
were blocked lasted longer than 1 minute. 

PM Peak Period Observations 

• The eastbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto Brookwood Road caused 
congestion and delay for the eastbound right and northbound left movements from 
4:11 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. This problem persisted 5 other times during the study period 
lasting less than 1 minute each time. 

• Similarly, the westbound left queue from Crosshill Road onto Brookwood Road 
caused congestion and delay for the westbound right and southbound left 
movements 6 times during the study period. 

Alternative Improvements 

Alternative 1 -Install Additional Stop Signs 

In order to correct deficiencies shown to exist In intersection capacity, sight distance, and based on 
observations, three additional stop signs could be installed on Brookwood Road. The locations of the 
proposed stop signs are shown in Figure 7. Capacity and queue analyses were performed to determine 
the traffic operation of the proposed alternative. The results of these analyses are shown in Table 2 and 
are Included in Appendix C. 

While the analyses show that installation of additional stop signs results in overall improvements in 
delay and level of service, the queue on Brookwood Road northbound approaching the northern 
intersection of Crosshill Road is significantly greater than the available stacking room between the two 
triangles. Therefore, installation of the proposed stop sign on Brookwood Road northbound at the 
northern intersection of Crosshill Road would not be advisable. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 7 



~====~..J -- ST TOP 

STOP 

PROPOSED 

r-..;unh 
Scalcnt.s 

Figure 7. Improvement Alternative 1 (All-Way Stap) 

Table 2 Intersectian Capacity Analysis and Queue Calculations - Alternative 1 

AM,~ 'eM'" 
, 

~ ~I ~ ,LOS, IQiiliiiY/ ~, ILD.S • ,Hi;u;" . Qi(eue, 
Crosshill Road Left C 18 

120' 
B 12 

85' 
Westbound Right A 9 A 5 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road Through D 28 
440' 

B 12 
lOS' 

Crosshill Road Northbound Right D 28 A 8 
(North) Brookwood Road Left B 14 65' A 8 60' 

Southbound Through B 12 110' A 9 70' 
Overall intersection C 20 A 10 

Crosshill Road Left C 23 
1S0' 

B 11 
Eastbound Right B 13 

100' 
A 7 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road Left A 9 
70' 

A 9 

Crosshill Road Northbound Through B 12 
55' 

A 8 
(South) Brookwood Road Through A 8 A 7 

Southbound Right A 9 
lOS' 90' 

A 7 

Overall Intersection C 16 A 9 

Note: Delay IS expressed In average seconds per vehIcle 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 8 



In response to concerns of local residents, additional analyses were performed to determine the impacts 
of installation of only one of the two proposed stop signs at the southern intersection of Brookwood 
Road at Crosshill Road. Two additional sub-alternatives were developed and analyzed: 

Sub-Alternate 1A - installation of a stop sign on only Brookwood Road northbound (results are 
tabulated in Table 3 and are included in Appendix 0) 

Sub-alternate 1B - installation of a stop sign on only Brookwood Road southbound (results are 
tabulated in Table 4 and are included in Appendix E) 

Table 3. Intersection y' -,. and Queue Calculations - Sub-Alternate 1A 

• ,In~, ~, ~ 

~ I~QiIeUe, 

Crosshill Road left 52 
395' 

B 15 105' 
Westbound Right B 17 A 5 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road A 8 
15' 

A 4 
0' 

Crosshill Road Northbound Right A 6 A 3 
(North) Brookwood Road lef~ F 113 55' A 10 65' 

Southbound E 68 49S' A 10 80' 

Overall I i D 36 A ~ 
Crosshill Road left C 30 

335' 
B 12 

100' 
Eastbound Right B 14 A 7 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road l eft A 9 
75' 

B 11 
55' 

Crosshill Road Northbound B 13 A 8 " (South) Brookwood Road , nrougn A 4 
0' 

A 3 
0' 

Southbound Right A 3 A 3 

Overall I I B 17 A 7 

Note: Delay,s e>pressed ,n average seconds per veh,cle 

Table 4. ./. , I, and Queue Calculations _ ~,.h" 18 

~ I~ ~ ~t >@ ~ . LQs:' 
I Road l eft D 48 

350' 
B 15 

105' 
Right B 15 A 5 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road A 7 
10' 

A 3 
0' 

Crosshill Road Northbound RIg~ A 5 A ~ 
(North) Brookwood Road left E 77 60' A 9 65' 

Southbound ,n, D 45 390' A ~ 70' 

OVlull C 28 A 8 

Crosshill Road Left C 25 
275' II ~ 100' 

Eastbound RIRht B 13 A 7 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road left A 4 
30' 

A 6 
20' 

Crosshill Road Northbound A 4 A 1 
(South) 8rookwood Road Th,n".h A 8 A 7 

Southbound Right A 8 
110' 

A 6 
85' 

Overall B 16 A 8 

Note: Delay IS e>pressed ,n average seconds per veh,cle 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 9 



As shown in Tables 3 and 4, neither Sub-Alternate lA or Sub-Alternate lB completely addresses the 
queue on Crosshill Road eastbound at Brookwood Road during the a.m. peak period. Both sub
alternates decrease the queue, with Sub-Alternate lB having the best overall impact on the queue 
(approximately 30% reduction). It should be noted that the stop sign which would be installed under 
Sub-Alternate lB would also correct the one existing sight distance limitation. 

Alternative 2 - Traffic Signalization 

A second alternative for correction of capacity and sight distance deficiencies at the intersection of 
Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road would be the installation of a traffic signal. In order to determine if 
this would be a viable alternative, a traffic signal warrant analysis was performed for the intersection 
using the methodology included in the 2009 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, published by 
the Federal Highway Administration. Approach traffic counts for the intersection are included in 
Appendix F. The results of the warrant analysis are included in Appendix G. The results of the traffic 
signal warrant study show that the existing traffic volumes at the intersection of Brookwood Road at 
Crosshill Road do not meet either the eight hour volume warrants or four hour volume warrant. 
Therefore, signalization of the intersection is not advised. 

Recommended Improvements 

The analyses presented in this report indicate that there are three primary deficiencies with the 
intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road to be addressed. These deficiencies are: 

• The limited sight distance looking to the right from the left turn from Brookwood Road 
northbound onto Crosshill Road westbound (southern intersection) 

• The excessive queue during the a.m. peak period on Crosshill Road westbound turning left onto 
Brookwood Road southbound (northern Intersection) 

• The excessive queue during the a.m. peak period on Crosshill Road eastbound turning left onto 
Brookwood Road northbound (southern intersection) 

The research performed during this study effort has shown that the sight distance limitation looking to 
the right from the left turn from Brookwood Road northbound onto Crosshill Road westbound (southern 
intersection) is a safety concern. Within the last three years, there has been crash where this sight 
distance limitation may have been a contributing factor. This sight distance limitation can be corrected 
in two reasonable ways: 

1. removal of existing landscaping, undergrowth, and one tree along the property frontage 
of 3329 Brookwood Road; or 

2. installation of a stop sign on Brookwood Road southbound at the intersection of 
Crosshill Road (southern intersection) 

The excessive queue on Crosshill Road westbound (northern intersection) can only be corrected by 
installation of a stop sign on Brookwood Road northbound or traffic signalization. This report has 
demonstrated that neither of these options would be acceptable. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 10 



The excessive queue on Crosshill Road eastbound (southern intersection) can only be corrected to an 
acceptable level by installation of two stop signs on Brookwood Road or a traffic signal. This report has 
already shown that traffic signalization is not warranted. Installation of only one stop sign will not 
produce the same level of result as installation of two stop signs. 

Based on the analyses of the alternative improvements, it is recommended that two stop signs be 
installed at the intersection of Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road. The locations of the proposed stop 
signs are shown in Figure 8. The stop sign on Brookwood Road southbound is needed to correct the 
sight distance deficiency and reduce the queue on Crosshill Road eastbound. The stop sign on 
Brookwood Road northbound is needed only to reduce the queue on Crosshill Road eastbound. 

The stop sign on Brookwood Road northbound could be eliminated from consideration if the City deems 
that the moderate improvement in queue on Crosshill Road eastbound is acceptable. The stop sign on 
Brookwood Road southbound could likewise be eliminated provided that other measures are employed 
to establish adequate sight distance. 

STOP 

Figure 8. Recommended Improvements 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 

:o\nnh 
Sole: n.u 

Page 11 



Operational Analysis of Recommended Improvements 

Capacity and queue analyses were performed to determine the traffic operation of the recommended 
improvements. The results of these analyses are shown in Table S and are included in Appendix H. 

Tobie 3. Intersection r, A. ,I •• 1, and Queue Calculatians - Recommended 

'Int:eis~ ~P!fHItiIi . " rllil~nt. ,DJIiW . . ~ 
Crosshill Road Left F 58 

550' 
B 

Westbound Right C 23 A 
Brookwood Road at ~" ~,:~ad A 8 

15' 
A 

Crosshill Road Right A 5 A 
(North) Brookwood Road Left F 137 55' A 

Southbound Th,n".h F 91 605' A 
Overall E 42 A 

Crosshill Road Left C 23 
245' 

B 

Eastbound Right B 13 A 

Brookwood Road at Brookwood Road Left A 9 
75' 

A 

Crosshill Road Northbound I nroug' B 12 A 
(South) Brookwood Road A 8 

90' 
A 

Southbound Right A 8 A 
Overall i C 16 A 

Note: Delay is c.~, c"cu in average per vehicle 

Cost Estimates 

The cost estimate for implementation of the recommended improvements is as follows: 

Two STOP signs on U-channel posts 
4S linear feet of 2' white stop line 

Funding Sources 

$ 600.00 
$ 600.00 

Total $1,200.00 

The recommended improvements should be installed by City forces. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 

, -I!:I!', 
1~ 105' 
5 
4 

0' 
3 
10 65' 
10 80' 
8 
11 

95' 
7 
9 

55' 
8 
7 
6 

85' 

9 

Page 12 



Appendix A 

Existing Intersection Turning Movement 
Traffic Counts 



Mountain Brook, AL 

20 
25 
71 

05:00PM 11 
05:16PM 20 
05:30PM 15 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane 

Birmingham, AL 35216 
205·824·0126 

, 
61 27 7 

13 1 29 15 . 
18 1 35 10 I 
48 ! 113 40 1 

10 I 31 
10 1 47 
9 1 40 11 11 1 

05:4~: . . .. - ~~ - --.il,+- - 28 22 
1~6 58 ! 

07:00AM 17 13 39 13 ' 
07:15AM 19 7 ! 69 411 
07!30AM 44 22 1 78 49 ! 
07:45AM 50 33 i 67 22 , 

Tolal 130 76 ! 243 126 ! 

08:00AM 6 16 ' 39 8 ' 
08:15AM 9 

1: I 38 11 : 
08:30AM 13 38 8 i 
08:45AM 8 18 1 21 51 

Tolal 38 52 ! 138 32 : 

Grand Tolal 306 216 i 638 255 · 
Appid1 % 66.8 41.41 71.4 28.6 ! , 

Tolal% 12.8 9.0 ! 28.7 10.7 . 

, 
199 ; 47 118 I 153 48 63 

Percent 39.8 78.9 23.1 1 18.8 
06:15 Volume 10 30 ! 47 11 58 j 11 

Peak Fector 

High Inl. 04:45 PM 106:15 PM . 05:30PM 

Volume 26 18 43 1 47 11 58 . 16 
Peak Faclo( 0.888 ' 0.858 · 

Peak Hour From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1 
By Approach 04:30 PM 1 05:00PM 04:45PM 

Volume 78 51 127 ' 148 66 204 53 
Porconl 59.8 40.2 71.6 28.4 18.8 

HIgh InL 04;45 PM I 05:15PM 05:30PM 
VoIUmO 25 18 43 , 47 II 58 18 

Peak Factor 0.738 1 0.879 

File Name : mountainbrook02 
Site Gode : 00000000 
Start Date : 03/11/2015 
Page No : 1 

15 37 j 106 
14 44 . 135 
9 1 ~~.f.·--- -' 1~: 47 

17 58 • 139 
11 eo i 159 
18 62

1 
163 

11 47 143 
55 . 225-' - - " --594 

6 42 1 129 
18 72 1 226 
31 120 I 344 
17 88 , 267 
7f 322 1 966 

7 24 1 100 
3 19 1 86 
5 13 • 91 
4 - ... -}!~ 72 

19 4 . •. - 349 

192 7eo l 2387 
19.8 80.2 1 
8.0 32.7 1 

, 
229 282 ! O! 599 
81.2 j 

60 71 1 0 1 159 , 10.942 
; 3:45:00 1 
IPM 

62 78' 
0.904 : 

I 04:00PM 
229 282 1 0 1 

81.2 

82 78 r 
0.904 1 -, 



TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane 

Birmingham, AL 35216 
205·824·0125 

File Name : mountainbrook02 
Site Code : 00000000 
Start Date : 03/11/2015 
Page No : 2 

,---------,---~B~R~O~~~OOO~~Rmo~--r_--~C~RRo~s~sHml~LLUR~D)---lI--~BrnR~RW~~RruD'---I---~ 
Soulhbound Weslbound Northbound 1 t 

hru oHI ht 0 Thru R ht A .Tota I A olal l Int. Total 

75 205 1 243 
38.6 : 66.0 

22 66 , 76 , 
• 07:30AM 

33 63 · 78 
0.617 1 

Peak Hour Flom 07:00 AM to 06:45 AM • P .. k 1 011 
By Approach 07:00 AM 

Volume 130 
P.,~nt 6304 
High Inl 07:45 AM 
Volum. 50 

Peol< Faclor 

76 
36.6 

33 

I 07:00AM 
205 i 243 

66.0 
, 07:30AM 

63! 78 
0,617 i 

125 
34.0 

49 

49 

125 
34.0 

49 

, 
388 , 71 322 393 ' O· 986 

I 18.1 81.9 \ I 

127 1 31 120 151 ; 0 1 344 
I \ 10.702 
: 07:30AM , 

127 \ 31 120 . 151! 
0.7Z4 . 0.651 1 

I 07:00AM \ 07:00AM 
368 . 71 322 393 : 0 ; 

18.1 81.9 I . I 07:30AM 
151 i . i 127 31 120 

0.724 1 0.651 / • ! 



Mountain Brook. AL 

_._---
05:00PM 16 
.05:15 PM 13 
05:30PM 13 
05:45PM 16 

Tolal - 87 

07:00AM 16 
07:15AM 13 
07:30AM 28 
07:45AM 38 

Total 97 

08:00AM 27 
08:16AM 17 
08:30AM 28 
08:45AM 18 

Tol,1 90 

Grand TaIBI 302 
Apprch % 35.3 

Tol.l % 16.3 

Inl.,.ecllon 04:45 PM 
Volume 81 131 
Percenl 31.8 68.2 

05:16 Volume 13 41 
Peek Faclor 

High Int 05:15 PM 

Volume 13 41 
Peak Foclor 

192 ! 

54 ' , , 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC . 
1409 Turnham lane 

Birmingham. AL 35216 
205-824-0125 

28 1 21 1 
41 , 13 , 
34 i 4 17 1 

1~ 1 -.--.+ - .. ---~ ; -

33 t 0 6 : 

~ ! 1 18 1 
5 27 j 

51 , 3 14 . 
215 1 9 84 1 

32 1 1 7 1 
28 . 2 6 : 
27 , 0 ;1 22 i 1 

1091 · .. ·4 20 I 

6631 32 215
1 64.71 13.0 87.0 

28.1 , 1.6 10.9 i 

oi 10 84 74 1 , 13.6 88.6 
0 1 1 13 14 • 

! 

s 

File Name : mountainbrook01 
Site Code : 00000000 
Start Date ; 03/11/2015 
Page No ; 1 

50 7 \ 120 
87 4 : 139 
84 6 1 137 
46 -._- - 1}t-- 107 

227 --'603 

41 2 \ 99 
72 2 1 170 

131 5 i 263 
99 10 ; 215 

343 19 ' 747 

23 2 1 92 
17 2 : 71 
12 3 : 75 
19 2 1 85 
71 9 : 303 

803 64 1 1969 
92.6 7.4 1 
40.8 3.3 

258 i 238 20 522 
92.2 7.8 I 

87 4 71 1 139 
0.939 i : 3:45:00 j05:00PM 'PM , 05:15PM I 

64 ! oj 1 21 22 . 67 4 71 ! 
0.889 : 0.841 : 0.901 . 

Peak Hour From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Poak 1 0' 1 
By Approach 04:45 PM : 04:00PM I 04:15PM 04:45PM 

Volume 61 131 1921 o 11 70 81 ; 238 20 258 1 
Percent 31.8 68,2 I I 13.8 88.4 92.2 7.8 

High lot 05:16 PM I - . 04:30PM ' 05:15 PM 
, 
I Volume 13 41 

0.8rol 
- ' 4 21 25 : 87 4 71 , 

PeokFoctor -, 0.810 ; 0.901 ; 



Vol""", 97 215 
Percent 31.1 88.9 • 

07:30 Volume 28 87 95 ' 
Peek factor ! 

High Int. 07:30 AM 
Volume 28 57 95

1 Peak FaclOt 0.821 . 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane 

Birmingham. AL 35216 
205·824·0125 

0 1 9 84 
12.3 87.7 

oi 6 27 
I 

07:30AM 
O· 5 27 

Peak Hour From 07:00 AM 10 08:46 AM - Peak 1 0' 1 
By Approach 07:18AM , 07:00AM i 07:15AM 

Volume 108 214 320 I 0 10 88 
Percent 33.1 66,9 i 13.2 86,8 
High Inl 07:30 AM 

95 1 
07:30AM 

Volume 28 87 - i 6 27 
Plak Factor 0,842 1 -, 

73 ! 

32 , 

File Name : mountainbrook01 
Site Code : 00000000 
Star! Date : 03/11/2015 
Page No : 2 

343 19 362 ! 747 
94.8 5.2 I 

131 5 138 ' 263 
io.710 

' 07:30AM 
138 1 32 1 131 5 

0.570 I 0.665 • 

07:00AM 
76 \ 343 19 382 i 

94.8 5.2 
07:30AM I 

32 131 5 138 : 
0.694 O.865 i 



Appendix B 

Existing Intersection Capacity and Queue 
Analysis Worksheets 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
Existing AM 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovemen S 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 51.5 17.2 7.3 5.0 108.6 65.8 34.4 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovement· EBl EB~ SBT SBR 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 33.2 14.6 5.8 3.5 3.4 3.5 18.0 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

55.0 

Existing AM 
5/26/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
Existing AM 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen 
Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (It) 507 22 56 503 
Average Queue (It) 204 4 55 246 
95th Queue (It) 396 19 56 478 
Link Distance (It) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.89 0.13 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 108 28 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

Existing AM 
5/26/2015 

~~ov~e~m~e~nr---------~B~~~B~---------------------------------------------' 

Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (It) 457 32 
Average Queue (It) 226 7 
95th Queue (It) 382 29 
Link Distance (It) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

Nework Summary 

30 
0.01 

1 

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 136 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
Existing PM 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Existing PM 
5/26/2015 

~ov~e~me~nt~-------WB~~~~R~~B~T--'~BR B SBT--~"~--------------------' 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 14.4 5.0 3.3 3.2 9.0 9.7 7.6 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Delay/Veh(s) 12.0 7.4 6.6 1.6 3.5 2.7 6.8 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

18.7 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
Existing PM 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen 
Directions Served 
Maximum Queue (tt) 
Average Queue (tt) 
95th Queue (tt) 
Link Distance (tt) 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

LR 
113 
63 
98 

2693 

30 
0.11 

7 

T 
99 
39 
71 

2765 

0.06 
6 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovement . EB N 
Directions Served 
Maximum Queue (tt) 
Average Queue (tt) 
95th Queue (tt) 
Link Distance (tt) 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

Nework Summary 

LR 
113 
66 

105 
2848 

L 
32 

5 
24 

30 
0.00 

o 

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 14 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshlil Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

Existing PM 
5/26/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



Appendix C 

Intersection Capacity and Queue Analysis 
Worksheets 

Alternative 1 - Additional Stop Signs 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
AM All Way Stop 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 17.8 9.0 27.9 27.8 13.9 12.1 20.4 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovement B S 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 23.2 13.1 8.7 11.5 7.8 8.6 15.8 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshlll Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

39.5 

AM All Way Stop 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
AM All Way Stop 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

AM All Way Stop 
6/30/2015 

~ove~me~nT.---------'~--~B~B~. ---'S~B'---------------~--------------------' 

Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (It) 140 595 56 136 
Average Queue (It) 82 225 52 61 
95th Queue (It) 118 439 64 1 09 
Link Distance (It) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

30 
0.26 

31 
0.11 

24 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovement B B 
Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (It) 309 55 
Average Queue (It) 149 14 
95th Queue (It) 237 47 
Link Distance (It) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.02 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 

Nework Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 59 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

B SB 
T TR 

76 138 
47 68 
72 107 

3458 1591 

0.14 
2 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
PM All Way Stop 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

5.0 11.5 8.3 7.9 9.2 10.2 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 11.0 7.4 9.0 7.9 7.1 6.8 8.7 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

23.0 

PM All Way Stop 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
PM All Way Stop 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen e 
Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (II) 100 114 55 99 
Average Queue (II) 58 66 39 38 
95th Queue (II) 87 104 61 69 
Link Distance (II) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (II) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.08 0.05 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 6 5 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen E 
Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (II) 113 55 
Average Queue (II) 63 14 
95th Queue (II) 99 44 
Link Distance (II) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (II) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.01 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1 

Nework Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 12 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

B 
T TR 

55 100 
35 60 
54 88 

3458 1591 

0.05 
1 

PM All Way Stop 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



Appendix D 

Intersection Capacity and Queue Analysis 
Worksheets 

Sub-Alternate lA 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
AM SubAlt 1A 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

AM SubAlt 1A 
7/30/2015 

~ow~m~e~n~-------~~~J~' ''R~'~ SBW-~b'O"--~r---------~----------' 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 52.2 17.4 7.8 5.6 113.4 67.5 35.6 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

oveme s S 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 30.2 14.2 9.2 12.5 3.5 3.1 17.4 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

55.7 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
AM SubAlt 1A 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen 
Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (tt) 464 32 56 519 
Average Queue (tt) 204 3 55 256 
95th Queue (tt) 396 17 56 497 
Link Distance (tt) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.91 0.14 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 110 29 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovemenl EB B 
Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (tt) 368 55 
Average Queue (tt) 201 15 
951h Queue (tt) 336 48 
Link Distance (tt) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.02 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 

Nework Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 144 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

B 
T 

77 
48 
74 

3458 

0.17 
3 

AM SubAIt 1A 
7/30/2015 

SlmTraffic Report 
Page 2 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
PM SubAlt 1A 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 14.7 5.0 3.7 3.4 10.4 10.1 8.1 

2: Cross hill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovemen 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 11.5 7.4 11.1 8.1 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

19.5 

2.6 7.3 

PM SubAlt 1A 
7/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
PM SubAlt 1A 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen 
Directions Served LR L T 
Maximum Queue (tt) 138 55 118 
Average Queue (tt) 65 41 40 
95th Queue (II) 104 64 79 
Link Distance (II) 2693 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.12 0.06 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 8 6 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen B B 
Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (II) 108 55 
Average Queue (tt) 64 15 
95th Queue (II) 99 46 
Link Distance (II) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.02 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1 

Nework Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 17 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

B 
T 

55 
35 
54 

3458 

0.06 
1 

PM SubAlt 1A 
7/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



Appendix E 

Intersection Capacity and Queue Analysis 
Worksheets 

Sub-Alternate 18 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
AM SubAlt 1B 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 44.6 27.9 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovement iii . B NBT SBT BR AI 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 24.9 13.1 4.4 3.6 8.0 8.2 15.7 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshlll Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

47.1 

AM SubAIt 1B 
7/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
AM SubAlt 1B 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovement B B 
Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (It) 356 22 56 424 
Average Queue (It) 188 2 54 200 
95th Queue (It) 348 12 61 389 
Link Distance (It) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.84 0.13 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 101 28 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovemenl 
Directions Served 
Maximum Queue (It) 
Average Queue (It) 
95th Queue (It) 
Link Distance (It) 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

Nework Summary 

LR 
386 
165 
277 

2848 

L 
32 

8 
31 

30 
0.00 

o 

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 130 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

TR 
156 
67 

108 
1591 

AM SubAlt 1B 
7/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
PM SubAlt 1B 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovemen SB 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 14.8 5.0 3.3 3.1 9.0 9.8 7.7 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovemen EB EBR B l' SIB 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 11.2 7.4 5.7 1.7 7.1 6.3 8.0 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

19.9 

PM SubAlt 1B 
7/30/2015 

SimTraflic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
PM SubAlt 1B 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

Directions Served LR L T 
Maximum Queue (tt) 138 55 99 
Average Queue (tt) 66 42 39 
95th Queue (tt) 105 64 71 
Link Distance (tt) 2693 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.11 0.06 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 7 6 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovement 
Directions Served 
Maximum Queue (tt) 
Average Queue (tt) 
95th Queue (tt) 
Link Distance (tt) 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 
Storage Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 

Nework Summary 

LR 
113 
63 
99 

2848 

L 
32 
4 

21 

30 
0.00 

o 

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 14 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

s 
TR 
100 
55 
84 

1591 

PM SubAlt 1B 
7/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



Appendix F 

Existing Intersection Approach Traffic Counts 



locaUon: : 
ety, State: : 

CROSSHILl RO west of BROOKWOOD RD 
MOUNTAIN SROO!<, AL 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane, Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-824-0125 

Oate: 3/11/2015 
Wednesday 

~~c:;-;:24 Hour Vok!me 
::=====~ Begin EB we Combtned Begin EB we Combined 

ll :00AM 12 60 19 72 31 112 11 :00 PM -] 6 0 -2 3= '---'S---
11:15 AM 14 15 29 11:15 PM 1 1 2 
11:30 AM 17 26 43 11:30 PM 1 0 1 
11 :45 AM 17 12 29 11 :45 PM 1 1 2 

------:12:ooPM---23--'n -----fl---6S-----34---r.o5 --37f2/201 5- 12:OOAM I 2 I 4 2 6 
12:15 PM 12 12 24 12:15 AM 1 L 2 
12:30 PM 17 25 42 12:30 AM 0 0 0 
12:45 PM 25 20 45 12:45 AM 0 2 2 

----'-1:00PM f9---ii~-----f3 60 ---32--[4. ------I:oo~- 0 0 0 0 0---0 
1:15PM 21 12 33 1:15AM 0 0 0 
1:30 PM 23 26 49 1:30 AM 0 0 0 
1:45 PM 22 9 31 1:45 AM 0 0 0 

------2:00 PM IS 90 --,s ·--1~---33--i46 2:M Al\j----z 2 0 2 2----' 
2:15 PM 30 19 49 2 :15 AM 0 1 1 
2:30 PM 12 80 92 2:30 AM 0 0 0 
2 :45 PM 30 42 72 2:45 AM 0 I I 

-----3:00 PM i j --l n ----f9---iB3----tl6--355 3:00AM 0 0 0 0 0 d 
3:15 PM 54 39 93 3:15 AM 0 0 0 
3:30 PM 56 79 135 3:30 AM 0 0 0 
3:45 PM 35 26 61 3:45 AM 0 0 0 

------' :00 PM 12 165 l s 108 5'l-Vl 4:00 AM 0 0 I 2 I 2 
' : 15 PM ~5 23 6S 4 :15 AM 0 0 0 
. :30 PM 39 28 67 4:30 AM 0 0 0 
4:45 PM ~9 32 81 4 :45 AM 0 I I 

-----S:OOPM 55 219 21 120-- 76--339 5:00""'- 0---2-----3----1,------3--' 9 
$:15 PM 61 38 99 5:15 AM 1 7 8 
5:30 PM 58 37 95 5:30 AM I 3 4 
5:45 PM 45 24 69 5:45 AM 0 4 4 
6:00 PM 43 138 22 97~· -- 6: 00 AM I 30 3--43-------.--n 
6:15 PM 12 28 60 6:15 AM 3 6 9 
6:30 PM 36 16 52 6:30 AM S 15 23 
6:45 PM 27 11 58 6 :45 AM 18 19 37 
7:00-PM----f8--ioo--- - T6--74"-----54---I80 7:ooAM--·-4 5 320 33 -·--204 --- - 78--524 
7:15 PM 28 29 57 7:15 AM 72 56 128 
7:30 PM 13 16 29 7:30 AM 109 67 176 
7;45 PM 27 13 40 7:45 AM 94 48 142 

------8:00 PM 14 62 - --6 40 20 102 8:00 AM 24 78 32 109 56 187 
8: 15 PM 15 J6 31 8:15 AM 19 28 41 
8:30 PM 11 8 19 8:30 AM 14 25 39 
8:45 PM 22 10 32 8 :45 AM 21 24 45 

------9:00 PM fj.--j -I --- ---6--13--·----17---« 9:00AM 8 48 19 n 27 125 
9:15 PM 6 4 10 9:15 AM 16 21 37 
9 :30 PM 8 2 10 9 :30 AM 12 14 26 
9 :45 PM 6 1 7 9 :45 AM 12 23 35 

----'10 ;00 PM 6 13 -- - S---6- -- . I -I --' 9 10:00 AM 13 57 15 62 --"2"'S-~I;-;I'"9 
10:15 PM' 0 4 10:15 AM 21 13 34 
10:30 PM 0 0 0 10:30 AM S 17 25 
10:45 PM 3 I 4 10:45 AM 15 17 32 

-------'-. fIl---·_----Y/li--- :----"'c~o~m~biilniii.iijd-==='--
24 Hour Volumo 1763 (53_7'11» 1519 (46.3%) 3282 

IZIRD 68 . IZigD ~~ 
IlIl lr!Il ~ml!lm:d 

Count 599 592 1191 
SO_3 'II> 49,7 % 

Peak Hour 7:00AM 7:00 AM 7:00AM 
Volume 320 20. 524 

Factor 0 .73 0.76 0 .74 

fIl 
116. 

55.7 'II> 
4:45 PM 

223 
0.91 

12;00 pM - 12;00 AM 
lr!Il 
927 

44.3 'II> 
2:30 PM 

200 
0.63 

Combined 
2091 

2:45 PM 
366 
0_68 



Location: : 
Oty, State: : 

CROSSHllL RD east of BROOKWOOD RD 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane, Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-824-0125 

Date: 

WB 
0 3 

24 HOUf votume 

======;,:_ ~gll) EB WB comb;;;lnj!.@d::::;;;~~":::.::~~~= 
11:00 AM 17 77 25 100 4~ 177 11:00 PM 3 9 3 
11:15 AM 20 19 39 11:15 PM 3 3 0 
11:30 AM 22 31 53 11:30 PM 1 3 2 
11 :45 AM IB 25 43 11 :45 PM 2 3 I 

3/11/2015 
Wednesday 

12 

-------'12:00 PM 32--107 13 100 45--207 2 5 --3/12/,015 12:00 AM 1 3 ----3--"8 
U : 15PM n n % 
12:30 PM 20 34 54 
12:45 PM 32 10 62 

1:00 PM ia-IT5 22 101 50 216 
1:15 PM 33 25 58 
1:30 PM 29 l 7 66 
1:45 PM 25 17 42 

----2:00-"" 28'---117 23--:!~---5.-----J57 

2:15 PM 33 31 64 
2:30 PM 19 122 141 
2:45 PM 37 64 101 

----3:00 PM 76--245-----T8-~2----f2'I___;w7 

3:15 PM 64 63 127 
3:30 PM 62 96 158 
3:45 PM 43 45 88 
4:00 PM 44 230 37- -r53-----8'"1 - -.-38"'3 
4:15 PM 53 34 87 
4:30 PM 64 41 105 
4:45 PM 69 U 110 

--- - 5,00 PM 67 291 41--194 108 405 
5:15 PM 78 58 136 
5:30 PM 72 '4 116 
5:45 PM 74 51 125 
6:00 PM 46--iln----33--1-4:r i!l--:m 
6:15 PM 52 33 85 
6:30 PM 52 27 79 
6:45 PM 41 49 90 

---"-:00 PM 4-8--151-----2 8--10' 76--256 
7:15 PM 41 33 74 
7:30 PM 30 22 52 
7:45 PM 32 22 54 

---i;:00-""-----l2- 97----12--69 34--166 
9:15 PM 25 31 56 
8:30 PM 17 14 31 
8:45 PM 33 12 45 --- ~:oo PM i9 51 10 26 29~--7"'7 
9:15 PM 11 8 19 
9:30 PM 14 6 20 
9:45 PM 7 2 9 

-------1 6:00 PM----I- 1--26 5 9 16- - "35 
10:15 PM 6 1 7 
10:30 PM 3 0 3 
10:45 PM 6 3 9;.-__ _ 

fIj iYl! 

Count 

P ... k Hour 
Volume 

Factor 

24 Hour Volume 2422 (51.3%) 2295 (48.7%) 

fIj 
792 

46.8 'lb 
7:00AM 

419 
0 .73 

12;00 AM • 12;00 PM 
YtIl 
901 

53.2 'lb 
7:15 AM 

343 
0.71 

Combined 
1693 

7:00 AM 
760 
0.72 

12:15 AM 1 2 I 
0 12:30 AM 1 1 

12:45 AM 0 2 2 
0 0 1:00AM 0 0 0 o 

1:15AM 0 0 0 
1=30 AM 0 0 0 
1:45AM 0 0 0 

0 3 ------2:00 AM - 2 3 2 6 
2:15AM 0 1 1 
2:30AM 0 0 0 
2:45AM 1 2 3 
3: 00AM 0 0 0 0 0 o 
3:15AM 0 0 0 
3:30AM 0 0 0 
3:45AM 0 0 0 
4:00 AM -0 0 1 3 1 3 
4:15AM 0 0 0 
4:30AM 0 0 0 
4:45AM 0 2 2 

----5:00 A/'i-----l --2 --~3:- 20 4 22 
5:15AM 0 8 8 
5:30 AM 1 4 5 
5:45 AM 0 5 5 
6 :"00 AM 1 36-----4--6-,----5----.9"7 
6 :15 AM 6 9 15 
6 :30 AM 8 21 29 
6 =45 AM 21 27 48 

-------7:(xfliM-----55 419 47---341 - ---w2 
7:15 AM 83 100 183 
7:30 AM 1<3 121 264 
7;45 AM 138 73 211 

------8:00 )IM---- 32 106 49 169 81 275 
8:15 AM 26 47 73 
8:30 AM 23 45 68 
8:45 AM 25 28 53 
9:00 AM 1"7i---~7"3.----2"9i--l"03 46 176 
9:15 AM 21 30 51 
9 :30AM 17 15 32 
9:45 AM 18 29 47 

10:00 AM 13---7j 2-2 --!!6 . 35--169 

Combined 
4717 

~~AM II 21 42 
10:30 AM 17 29 46 
10;45 AM 22 24 46 

fIj 
1630 

53.9 'lb 
5:00 PM 

291 
0.93 

12;00 PM - 12,H AM 
~ 

1394 
46.1 'lb 
2 :30 PM 

297 
0.61 

2:45 PM 
510 
0.61 



Location: : 
City, State: : 
Speed Umlt: : 

TRAFFIC DATA, LLC 
1409 Turnham Lane, Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-824-0125 
BROOKWOOD RO south or CROSSHlll RD 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AI. Date: 3/lI12015 

Wednesday 30 mph 

Begin 
11:00~AM 
11:15 AM 
11:30 AM 
11:45 AM 
12:00 PM 
12:15 PM 
12:30 PM 
12:45 PM 

1:00 PM 
1:15 PM 
1:30 PM 
1:45 PM 
2:00 PM 
2:15 PM 
2:30 PM 
2:45 PM 
3:00 PM 
3:15 PM 
3:30 PM 
3:45 PM 
4:oifpM 
4:15 PM 
4:30 PM 
4:"15 PM 
5:00 PM 
5:15 PM 
5:30 PM 
5:45 PM 
6:00 PM 
6:15 PM 
6:30 PM 
6 :45 PM 
7:00 PM 
7:15 PM 
7:30 PM 
7:45 PM 
8:00 PM 
8:15 PM 
8:30 PM 
8 :45 PM 
9:00 p",-
9:15 PM 
9:30 PM 
9:45 PM 

10:00 PM 
10:15 PM 
10:30 PM 
10:45 PM 

Count 

Peilk Hour 
Volume 

Factor 

NB 58 
_____ -.-:==0:.-__ ,24 Hour Volume 

- IIW'Iln NB ---S"'B.------comb""ln"ed"'---Combined 
10 .. 8 49 ---18 93 
14 11 25 
11 13 24 
9 17 26 

12 ---46-----8--53-----20--99 

7 12 19 
13 14 27 
14 19 33 
[5--83 11 46 36 129 
17 11 28 
19 13 32 
22 11 33 
16 69 7 42 23 111 
16 13 29 
20 13 33 
17 9 26 
25 83 13 107 58--i90 
17 29 46 
22 29 51 
19 16 35 

---20 76 13---75-----33--151 
17 17 34 
21 21 42 
18 24 42 
23 75 21 71 44 146 
13 16 29 
24 17 41 
15 17 32 
22 64 19 55 41 119 
9 14 23 

22 11 33 
11 11 22 
16 46 10 32 26--iii 
13 7 20 
10 9 19 
7 6 13 

10 35 7 16 17 51 
9 1 10 
5 3 8 

11 5 16 
8 20 7 10 15 30 
6 2 8 
5 1 6 
1 ° 1 --3- 9---·--1 • 4 is 
1 
1 
4 

24 Hour Volume 

Ill! 
240 

36,5% 
7:15 AM 

78 
0 .57 

1 
3 
1 

NIl 
851 (47_7%) 

12;00 AM - 12;00 PM 

&! 
'lIB 

63,5% 
7:30 AM 

119 
0,65 

2 
4 
5 

:ill 
933 (52 ,3%) 

Combined 
658 

7:15 AM 
196 
0 .77 

---------11:olfP~--i 5 0 2 1 7 
11 :15 PM 1 0 1 
11:30 PM 2 2 4 
11 ;45 PM 1 0 1 

3/12120 15 12:00 AM 1 2 ° 1 - 3 
12:1SAM 0 t 1 
12:30 AM 1 0 1 
12:45 AM 0 ___ ->i0:-_-;-___ -:O~-

1:00 AM 0 0 0 1 0 i 
1:15AM 0 0 0 
1:30AM 0 0 a 
1:45AM 0 1 1 
2:00 AM 0 0 0 2 0 i 
2:15AM 0 1 1 
2:30 AM 0 1 1 
2 :45 AM ° ----:0:<-__ ,. ___ --70i-
3:00 AM 0 0 ~ 0 0 0 o 
3:15AM 0 0 0 

3:30AM ° ° ° 
3:45AM 0 0 0 

----------~4~:00~A~M~-- ° 0 --~o~---,,------~o-
4 :15AM 0 1 1 
4 :30AM 0 0 0 
4:45AM 0 0 0 
5:00 AM 6----:r ----0---4,----0 
5:15AM 1 2 3 
5:30AM 1 0 1 
5:45AM 0 2 2 
6:00AM i 14 3 24--- 4 38 
6:15AM 6 5 11 
6 ~ 30 AM 4 10 14 
6:45AM 3 6 9 

-----~7~:00i\ii AM 5--15- 20 112 25 187 
7:15 AM 19 16 35 
7:30 AM 34 30 64 
7:45 AM 17 46 63 
8:00 AM- - ---8--20 - .,;2;<6--'91'-----:34--i16 
8:15 AM 7 17 24 
8:30 AM 6 29 35 
8:45 AM 4 19 23 

------9:00 AM 15 38------~2~6--'i9 41 117 
9:15 AM 10 16 26 
9:30 AM 8 19 27 
9:45 AM 5 18 23 

----' lo:(XD'M-----5 40 12 54-----e;- --g<I 
10:15~ M 13 D 
10:30 AM 8 14 22 

~~iiiiil-"1_0~'-':4,,5c.AM"-'-- 13 15 _____ ~ ___ ._. __ 
50mblned 
1784 

lll! 
611 

54.3% 
1:00 PM 

83 
0.83 

12;00 pM - 12,00 AM 
:ill 
515 

45,7% 
3:00 PM 

107 
0.81 

Combined 
1126 

3:00 PM 
190 
0,82 



Appendix G 

Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis Worksheet 



Brookwood Road at Crosshill Road 
Existing Traffic Volumes 

Signal Warrants - Summary 

Major Street Approaches 

Eastbound: Crosshlll Road 

Number of Lanes: 1 

85% Speed < 40 MPH. 

Total Approach Volume: 1,763 

Westbound: Crosshlll Road 

Number of Lanes: 1 

85% Speed < 40 MPH. 

Minor Street Approaches 

Northbound: Brookwood Road 

Number of Lanes: 1 

Total Approach Volume: 851 

Southbound: Brookwood Road 

Number of Lanes: 1 

Total Approach Volume: 2,295 Total Approach Volume: 933 

Warrant Summary (Urban valuo. apply., 

Warrant 1 • Eight Hour Vehicular Volumes ....................................................................................................................................... . 

Warrant 1A - Minimum Vehicular Volume ................................................................................................... Not Satisfied 

Required volumes reached for 0 hours, 8 are needed 

Warrant 18 -Interruption of Continuous Traffic ........................................................................................ Not Satisfied 

Required volumes reached for 0 hours, 8 are needed 

Warrant 1 A&B • Combination of Warrants ................................................................................................. Not Satisfied 

Required volumes reached for 0 hours. 8 are needed 

Warrant 2 • Four Hour Volumes ......................................................................................................................................................... . 

Number of hours (0) volumes exceed minimum < minimum required (4), 

Warrant 3 - Peak Hour ......................................................................................................................................................................... . 

Warrant 3A· Peak Hour Delay ...................................................................................................................... Not Evaluated 

Warrant 38 • Peak Hour Volumes ................................................................................................................ Not Evaluated 

Not Satisfied 

Not SaU.flod 

Not Evaluated 

Warrant 4 - Pedestrian Volumes ......................................................................................................................................................... Not Evaluated 

Warrant 5· School Crossing ............................................................................................................................................................... Not Evaluated 

Warrant 6 - Coordinated Signal System ............................................................................................................................................. Not Evaluated 

Warrant 7 - Crash Experience ............................................................................................................................................................. Not Evaluated 

Warrant 8 • Roadway Network ............................................................................................................................................................ Not Evaluated 

Warrant 9 • Intersection Near a Grade Crossing ............................................................................................................................... Not Evaluated 



Appendix H 

Intersection Capacity and Queue Analysis 
Worksheets 

Recommended Improvements 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
AM Recommended 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovemen S 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 57.7 22.5 7.7 5.4 136.8 90.7 42.0 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovement EB EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 23.4 13.2 8.8 11.7 7.5 7.9 15.9 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

60.7 

AM Recommended 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
AM Recommended 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

Directions Served LR TR L T 
Maximum Queue (It) 874 22 56 608 
Average Queue (It) 226 4 55 311 
95th Queue (It) 552 17 56 605 
Link Distance (It) 2693 1591 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.92 0.14 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 111 29 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (It) 309 55 
Average Queue (It) 150 14 
95th Queue (It) 247 47 
Link Distance (It) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.02 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 

Nework Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 144 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

T TR 
92 97 
48 65 
75 88 

3458 1591 

0.15 
2 

AM Recommended 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 



SimTraffic Performance Report 
PM Recommended 

1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

(s) 14.6 5.0 3.7 3.4 10.4 10.0 8.1 

2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road Performance by movement 

ovement EB[ EB~ NB NBT SBT SBR. 
Delay 1 Veh (s) 11.0 7.4 8.7 7.9 7.2 6.4 8.7 

Total Network Performance 

Delay 1 Veh (s) 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

20.7 

PM Recommended 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 1 



Queuing and Blocking Report 
PM Recommended 

Intersection: 1: Crosshill Road WB & Brookwood Road 

ovemen S . 
Directions Served LR L T 
Maximum Queue (tt) 138 55 118 
Average Queue (tt) 66 41 40 
95th Queue (tt) 105 64 79 
Link Distance (II) 2693 2765 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (tt) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.12 0.06 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 8 6 

Intersection: 2: Crosshill Road EB & Brookwood Road 

ovement EB ~B 
Directions Served LR L 
Maximum Queue (It) 109 55 
Average Queue (It) 63 14 
95th Queue (II) 96 44 
Link Distance (II) 2848 
Upstream Blk Time (%) 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 
Storage Bay Dist (It) 30 
Storage Blk Time (%) 0.01 
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1 

Newark Summary 
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 16 

Brookwood Rd at Crosshill Rd 
RLC 
Skipper Consulting 

B S 
T TR 

55 100 
35 56 
54 86 

3458 1591 

0.05 
1 

PM Recommended 
6/30/2015 

SimTraffic Report 
Page 2 


	2015-Aug-10 Agenda
	JBS Mental Health Authority presentation
	Cancer Awareness Proclamation
	Minutes
	Appoint EON Library Board member
	Surplus Property
	LED Lighting bid award
	Innovis Lighting, LLC bid
	Mayer Electric bid

	Stop Sign Brookwood Rd. at Crosshill Rd.



